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An excellent craftsman is able to select and transform a
rough stone into a GEM. Similarly, scholars and educators
with discerning eyes, can uncover the unexplored and
make their research and students shine.
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Treasurer’s Report
Al ERE

Report of the Treasurer to the Council on the Group’s
Financial Statements for the Financial Year from 1 July

2008 to 30 June 2009

Overview

In 2008/09, the Hong Kong Institute of Education (“Institute”) celebrated
its 15th Anniversary with a year-round “Education Year” programme,
comprising a full range of public lectures, international conferences
including the Asian Roundtable of Presidents of Universities of Education,
exhibitions and activities, under the theme of “Leading in Education,

Inspiring Learning”.

Fifteen years had passed by and the Institute had experienced phenomenal
growth. The Institute was formally established by legislation in 1994. It
came under the aegis of the University Grants Committee (“UGC”") in
1996, launched its first degree and postgraduate programmes in 1998/99,
and was granted self-accrediting status in 2004. By 2008, the Institute
had grown to a university-level institute, with a heritage of 70 years of
teacher training, offering mainly undergraduate, postgraduate, master and
doctoral programmes, in addition to certificate courses and a range of in-
service programmes. Moreover, the concept of “Education-plus” had been
embraced to broaden the range of our disciplines and subject specialisation
to prepare the new generation of educators to meet society’s changing
demands of the teaching profession.

As reported in the Treasurer’s Report of last year, the Institute has earmarked
to use its General and Development Reserve Fund (“Reserves”) to strengthen
the Institute’s academic strength and research profile. With this booster of
funding, improvement in research performance was evidenced in the recent
announcement of this year's General Research Fund result. As at 30 June
2009, the Reserves stood at a level of about $301 million, which would
continue to give a strong support for the implementation of the Institute’s
Strategic Plan 2009-12 and Beyond.

Academic Programmes and Student Numbers

In 2008/09, the Institute had launched a new self-financed program,
Bachelor of Music in Education (Honours) (Contemporary Music and
Performance Pedagogy) and validated a new UGC-funded program,
Bachelor of Education (Honours) (Liberal Studes), to be offered in 2009/10.
During the year, two self-financed programmes at Master’s Degree level had
also been approved to be launched in 2009/10, namely, Master of Arts in
Teaching English as an International Language and International Executive
Master of Arts in Educational Leadership and Change.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2008/2009

R GE s ET - FF/NFELH—
HE ZFFAFENA =1 H LB 7] 7

3

e e

“RENERNFDEERERR (TR [AR] ) +
hAFRE  HA/LERATH2FN [HEF] ER
B LA [HRIBR HAPRK] REE - RFETRAER
MEE - BEARBE  BEReSM [SMtRHEE KR
BREwE]  RERHEMBENEAR -

ThERRRE  ARNEIBEE D - FEEREAER
KR o AR —NANAEFEERKY - —NWARFEMA
RAEHEEPEZES ( [HEE] ) WEPRR - I
R—ANNFHEEHBNREMERE  —TTWF
EERARTERAETER - 2_TTN\F  ARE#
B A—FTBERBKENEMN - IH“‘/\ﬁAELtJri
RN HIEE - BT EREE LT BUERE B
HH 2 RE  BERBREMHAENERRE - R -
HMEEMBR (REAE  BEHE| MBS /F
EREZ T REFEEER E%E%ﬁ—ﬁfﬂ’\]%l%lf’ﬁ%
ERERIFRE  NCEESHARBEEXETEEEN

sk o

MEFHRAEREMER  AREHR [—BREBEERE
el ([RHEES]) HREER - BUMBRERH
B RIARE T - ﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁaé\$ﬁﬁ'ﬂgﬁﬁﬁﬂ%?
BiRA SR EABAEMES RN [EBRHRE] 1
LAENGE - BHEZZZNFAA=1TH  BEESES VZ’]
ZRE-EEBET EFEEARRIEHRBEME INX
& HHERERMN CGERRERGE B 2009-12) -

BB BB A

—RTENETAF AR -EBRAERE  /F

RYFRBET (ERETLRBERAER) RE - A

LEBEEHRESEY  BR-_ZZNAE—ZFHE

HABBHERESELRIE - FR - MEBARBWER
TRENEEERTY  $R_FTTNAE-TFEH 2
PIABBREEHEBELT - BESRITHRAEXZEA
TRIEFHEREREE) o



The total UGC-funded student in Full-Time Equivalent (“FTE") terms studying
at the Institute as at June 2009 increased by about 5.1% from 2007/08 to
4,268 FTE students in 2008/09. The increase mainly came from the studies
in undergraduate programmes which had experienced an increase of about
6.4% to 2,843 FTE students. Regarding the student intake at postgraduate
level, there was a slight decrease of about 2.5% to 506 FTE students. In
addition, an increase of about 6% of student intake was recorded in the
area of Early Childhood Education.

Among the non UGC-funded programmes, the Master of Education was
the most popular programme with a student intake of 458 which was
equivalent to about 229 FTE students. The Doctor of Education programme
had 28 FTE students.

The HKIEd School of Continuing and Professional Education Limited
continued to offer the Yi Jin programmes, with about 1,529 FTE students,
and the Pre-Associate Degree and Associate Degree programmes with about
316 FTE students in 2008/09.

Income and Expenditure

The Group adopts the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. For details
of the changes in accounting policy in relation to the new standards, please
refer to Note 2 of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Institute.
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UGC-funded Student Enrolment Statistics for the Year 2006/07, 2007/08 and 2008/09
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Income

There were net increases in both the UGC Block Grants and UGC earmarked
Grants of about $46 million and $16 million respectively. Most of the
increase in the UGC Block Grants was due to the supplementary grants for
price adjustments on the basis of civil service pay adjustment. Most of the
increase in the UGC earmarked Grants was attributable to the increase in the
Matching Grants. In addition, with the growth in student numbers, Tuition,
Programmes and Other Fees had increased by $19 million. Interest and net
investment income decreased by about $33 million to $26 million, which
was mainly due to the financial tsunami spreading across the globe in 2008
and its aftermath of low interest rate environment and distressful financial
and equity market. The Institute fund had been diversified to a number
of banks, and was invested in bank deposits, which were protected under
the Deposit Protection Scheme and guaranteed by the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government's Exchange Fund. The net investment
loss of about $3 million was an unrealised loss resulted from the decrease of
market value of investment holdings.

Over the past three years, the Group’s non-UGC funded income has seen a
small but steady growth from $200 million to $257 million. The Institute will
continue with its effort in the expansion of higher degree and self-financed
programmes, with the view to broaden its income base so as to lessen the
impact of short to medium term fluctuation in UGC-funded student places
and subventions.
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Expenditure

The expenditure of the Group had increased by $81 million to a total of
about $1,130 million for the year. Increases across all expenditure categories
were experienced, with major increases in Instruction and Research, Central
Computing Facilities, Management and General, and Premises and Related
expenses.
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UGC-funded and Non-UGC-funded Income for the Year 2006/07, 2007/08 and 2008/09
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2006/07

Hiring of new Chair Professors and Professors contributed to the increase
in Instruction and Research expenditure. Part of the increase in the
expenditure in the Library could be explained by the establishment of the
Hong Kong Museum of Education. About $10 million for the building up
of Mobile Learning infrastructure contributed to the increase in the Central
Computing Facilities. During the year, installation of the wireless network
and upgrade in communication infrastructure had been made. A notebook
loan programme was also launched to all full-time students of UGC-funded
programmes to prepare them for the “Mobile Education” for the classroom
of the future. The increase in Premises and Related expenses mainly came
from the shuttle bus services, security services, and other major revamp and
renovations of campus facilities. Increase in the Management and General
expenses included staffing and expenses related to marketing and image
building, strengthening of Senior Management capacity by adding a Vice
President, and consultancy fees for enhancements in the integrated financial

and human resources systems of the Institute.
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Superannuation Scheme

Membership of The Hong Kong Institute of Education Superannuation
Scheme (”Superannuation Scheme”) stood at 415 and the Superannuation
Scheme had total net assets of about $367 million as at 30 June 2009.

In addition, a total of 1306 members of staff participated in the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme with total an approximate net asset value of about
$56 million as at 30 June 2009.

Outlook

Hong Kong needs a university of education to enhance the overall quality of
education by attracting more outstanding students to the teaching profession.
In the University Grants Committee’s Report of the Review Group on the
Hong Kong Institute of Education’s Development Blueprint (February 2009),
it was recommended the Institute should “develop into a multidisciplinary
institution with a focus on Education and other complementary disciplines,
primarily offering undergraduate and postgraduate degree programmes
and undertaking research and research training”. This direction has been
endorsed and supported by the Government with a provision of 30 research
postgraduate degree places and an additional 120 First-Year-First-Degree
places to launch new undergraduate programmes complementary to
Education. It was also in line with the theme of transformation adopted by
the Institute in its Strategic Plan 2009-12 and Beyond.

In terms of financial planning for the next triennium, we will continue to
use the Institute’'s Reserves for the curriculum development, validation and
the launching of three new undergraduate programmes complementary
to Education, as well as for the preparation of the new 5-year Bachelor
of Education (“BEd"”) curriculum structure to be implemented in 2012/13.
Investment in building up research capacity will slowly tail off with the
anticipated growth in external research funding support. Donations will be
actively sought to broaden students’ overseas learning experience. With the
implementation of the new 5-year BEd curriculum structure, the Institute
will be able to rise to the challenges of curriculum reform that integrates
advanced knowledge and skills as well as values that can serve teachers in
the important roles of educating Hong Kong's future citizens.

In our transition to an education-focused multidisciplinary University, | firmly
believe that the Institute will play an even more prominent role in leading
research and development of education not only in Hong Kong, but also in
the Mainland and the broader Asia Pacific region. It would also make policy
impacts on education for the betterment of Hong Kong and the region.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2008/2009
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Seven years statistics of the Institute BEtFEHKFHEF

UGC-funded Student Numbers by Type of Education Sectors (in FTE)
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBENHR S

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Council of the Hong
Kong Institute of Education

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong
Institute of Education (the “Institute”) set out on pages 10 to 58, which
comprise the Consolidated and Institute Balance Sheets as at 30 June 2009,
and the Consolidated and Institute Income and Expenditure Statements,
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Funds and the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Council's responsibility for the financial statements

The Council of the Institute is responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 15 of The Hong Kong Institute of Education Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2008/2009
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Council of the Hong
Kong Institute of Education (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Institute and of the Group as at 30 June
2009 and of the Institute and the Group’s deficits and the Group’s cash

flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

25 September 2009
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION &/A# B 26t
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (k5B #BHS) » A< 8L B AE()

Balance Sheet EE& &%

At 30 June 2009 —ZETAFNA=1H

Group A &H Institute iz

2009 2008 2009 2008
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Pt et BETT BT BETT BRI
Non-current Assets FREEE
Fixed assets EE&E 4 2,067,728 2,084,330 2,063,589 2,080,087
Investments wE 5 1 1 1 1
Held-to-maturity investments REZEIBMAKRE 7 17,573 6,287 17,573 6,287
Time deposits TEHIER 8 59,807 6,649 59,807 6,649
2,145,109 2,097,267 2,140,970 2,093,024
Current Assets REBEE
Held-to-maturity investments BEZIHAKRE 7 6,295 30,045 6,295 30,045
Accounts receivable, deposits JEWERIE ~ e R
and prepayments TAfIFRIA 9 34,437 27,989 35,537 28,683
Financial assets at fair value RARBEFABZRA
through profit or loss TREE 10 12,555 16,179 12,555 16,179
Time deposits TEHTFR 8 730,687 703,864 729,499 702,530
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEY 11 286,345 506,609 254,848 475,624
1,070,319 1,284,686 1,038,734 1,253,061
Current Liabilities REEE
Accounts payable and accruals FEABRTE I fE AT RE 12 177,377 215,639 172,229 203,080
Provision for employee benefits & B @F#E 13 52,746 43,407 50,745 41,975
Borrowings =& 14 1,333 1,294 1,333 1,294
Deferred income EIEMA 15 219,598 217,242 217,719 217,101
451,054 477,582 442,026 463,450
Net Current Assets REBEEFE 619,265 807,104 596,708 789,611
Total Assets less Current Liabilities A EERRE & E 2,764,374 2,904,371 2,737,678 2,882,635
Non-current Liabilities FRBEE
Provision for employee benefits BB AR 13 16,925 14,162 16,288 13,847
Borrowings B3 14 4,243 5,576 4,243 5,576
21,168 19,738 20,531 19,423
Deferred capital funds ELEERES 16 2,066,522 2,083,175 2,063,185 2,079,640
Net Assets EEFE 676,684 801,458 653,962 783,572
Funds S
Restricted funds BEES 17 42,174 38,655 42,174 38,655
Other funds HihE S 18 634,510 762,803 611,788 744,917
Total Funds Hewm 676,684 801,458 653,962 783,572

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 25 September 2009 KREERXR —ZETNFNA -+ HBAHERFEE R FERE -

Mr PANG Yiu-kai, SBS, JP SZIB{ELLE - REFHEE - AFat+ Dr Eric L Ka-cheung, GBS, )P ZER#E L - SXHIEF - ATF4+
Chairman of the Council RE& X & Treasurer @&
Prof Anthony CHEUNG Bing-leung, GBS, IP SRIAREIR - & LHES - KAt Ms Sarah WONG Man-yee &8 R+
President X Director of Finance 817§ & &

The notes on pages 14 to 58 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
FE I/ \E B E A R S SRR 6 — 51 o

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2008/2009



THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION &A% B 26t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (b SBHBHS) » A< 8L B AE()

Income and Expenditure Statement U3k

For the year ended 30 June 2009 B E=ZTZENFAA=THIEFE

Income

Government subventions

Tuition, programmes and
other fees

Interest and net investment
income

Donations and benefactions

Auxiliary services

Other income

Expenditure

Learning and research
Instruction and research
Library
Central computing facilities
Other academic services

Institutional support
Management and general
Premises and related expenses
Student and general

education services

Deficit from operations

Finance costs

Deficit for the year
before transfers

Transfers to/(from):
Restricted funds
Other funds

Note
Bt
WA
BT 19
B8 . REMEAKE
20
B R E F s
21
BRKREE 22
M 8 AR 7S 23
HUA
X 24
HE LR
HERHFE
B
R EREERNE
Hth SRR
HEXE
—MATHRER
R KA
B4 kR —REE R
BEBR
MR A 26
ERANFEEER
HRE/(H):
EEES 17
HihE&S 18

The notes on pages 14 to 58 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
FErHEL+N\BAMEEARGE BRI —E15

Group #&£H Institute Bz
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT T BETT BETT BT
653,191 579,510 628,964 556,934
265,245 245,938 200,357 181,978
25,626 59,114 25,266 58,392
25,436 13,801 25,013 13,026
25,759 24,625 30,962 30,099
9,823 8,058 17,409 17,859
1,005,080 931,046 927,971 858,288
629,495 615,300 559,461 547,812
46,539 39,485 46,539 39,485
68,463 53,805 68,463 53,805
50,414 45,816 50,414 45,816
91,232 75,255 90,849 74,713
186,170 170,530 184,465 168,767
57,304 48,146 57,153 47,996
1,129,617 1,048,337 1,057,344 978,394
(124,537) (117,291) (129,373) (120,106)
(237) (244) (237) (244)
(124,774) (117,535) (129,610) (120,350)
2,994 10 2,994 10
(127,768) (117,545) (132,604) (120,360)
(124,774) (117,535) (129,610) (120,350)

ERHEER2008/20098 B H{ &
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION &/A# B 26t
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (k5B #BHS) » A< 8L B AE()

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Funds

For the year ended 30 June 2009 HE-TTNFNA=THILFE

Restricted Other
funds funds Total
EEES HihHS 4a%E
$'000 $'000 $'000
BT BT BT
(Note 17) (Note 18)
(Kt:£17) (Kt:£18)

Balance at 1 July 2007 R-ZZLtFELtA—ANERE 27,390 891,603 918,993
Surplus/(deficit) for the year AEFZRL/ (B1E) 10 (117,545) (117,535)
Inter-fund transfer HEomEEE 11,255 (11,255) -

Balance at 30 June 2008 and R=-BENFARA=+THK
at 1 July 2008 —EEN\FLtA-HNER 38,655 762,803 801,458
Surplus/(deficit) for the year AEERL/ (B1E) 2,994 (127,768) (124,774)
Inter-fund transfer HELmEER 525 (525) =

Balance at 30 June 2009 R-BEAENA=THNERT 42,174 634,510 676,684

The notes on pages 14 to 58 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
FTE R /\E B E AR RS SRR 6 — 51 o
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION &/A# B 25t
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (b SBHBHS) » A< 8L B AE()

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Z&5BE&REHE

For the year ended 30 June 2009 B E=ZTZENFAA=THIEFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash used in operations

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets

Purchase of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

New time deposits

Purchase of held-to-maturity investments

Redemption of time deposits

Redemption of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Redemption of held-to-maturity investments

Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Grants and donations received for
additions of fixed assets
Repayments of borrowings

Net cash generated from financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the

beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year

EEZDNRERE
EEMARS

EELYMAREFR

RETHNRERE

BEEEEE

H & BEE & EMSHIA

BEEAREEFABED
EMEE

FTIEE HTE R

BASEEIHARKRE

FR [ E HTF R

BEIZ AR EER ARER
TREE

BOHEEIHARE

EURFIE

EUREE

REEEFTAE S FE
METHNRERE

IR E BEEEMRE

B MIBR

EEER

MEEDAEHRSFE
RERRESENNRDFE

FUNRE RS EFEY

FRNRERREEEY

The notes on pages 14 to 58 form part of these consolidated financial statements.

FHIEL /R 8 AR A B IS IR ) — &b

Note
libpsa

28(a)

28(b)

2009 2008
$'000 $'000
BT T BETT

(179,573) (11,888)
(179,573) (11,888)
(60,081) (21,678)
132 112
(4,355) (9,974)
(79,056) (503,759)
(17,408) -
- 3,000

5,042 128,460
30,000 176,020
28,226 41,580
372 69

(97,128) (186,170)

57,937 32,605
(1,500) (1,500)
56,437 31,105

(220,264) (166,953)

506,609 673,562

286,345 506,609

ERHEER2008/20098 B H{ &
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION &A% B 26

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (=& z7885)

Notes to the Financial
Statements

2.1

2.2

General information

The objects of the Hong Kong Institute of Education (“Institute”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are to provide teacher education
and facilities for research into and the development of education. In
addition, the Group also plans, establishes and manages non-profit
making schools or education institutions to advance the cause of
education.

The registered address of its office is at 10 Lo Ping Road, Tai Po, New
Territories, Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved and

authorised for issue by the Council on 25 September 2009.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
a collective term that includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2009 comprise the Institute and its subsidiaries (together referred to
as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise stated in
the accounting policies set out below. The preparation of financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenditure. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2008/2009
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2.2

2.3

24

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period; or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

New Accounting Standards

The HKICPA has issued the following new Interpretations and
an amendment to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Institute:

e HK(IFRIC) 14, HKAS 19 — The limit on a defined benefit asset,
minimum funding requirements and their interaction

e Amendment to HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement, and HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures —
Reclassification of financial assets

These HKFRS developments have had no impact on the Group’s and
the Institute’s financial statements for the years presented.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently
are exercisable are taken into account.

Subsidiaries are consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases.

All significant intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised losses arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there
is no evidence of impairment.

Investments in subsidiaries are carried in the balance sheet of the
Institute at cost less any impairment losses.

2

2.2

2.3

24
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Notes to the Financial Statements B##HHE

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION &A% B 26

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (&5 Az%885h

2

2.5

2.6

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary

assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the income and

expenditure statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at
fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates the fair value was determined.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses (see note 2.7).

The cost of a fixed asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after fixed assets
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the income and expenditure statement in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of
the fixed asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of
that asset.

All items at cost equal to or greater than $20,000 regardless funding
sources are subject to capitalisation for depreciation over its defined

useful lives.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
fixed asset is determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
the income and expenditure statement on the date of retirement or
disposal.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2008/2009
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2.6

2.7

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Fixed assets (Continued)

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over their expected useful
lives of 7 years or the unexpired period of the lease on a straight-
line basis, whichever is shorter. Depreciation of other fixed asset is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

50 Years

3to 5 Years

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted

- Buildings
- Fixtures and equipment

if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Impairment of Assets
(a) Impairment of Receivables

bad and doubtful
measured as the difference between the carrying amount

Impairment losses for debts are
of the financial asset and the estimated future cash flows,

discounted where the effect of discounting is material.

(b) Impairment of Fixed Assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to gather indications that fixed
assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased. If any
such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

- Calculation of Recoverable Amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its
netselling price and valuein use. In assessing valuein use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION &A% B 26

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Ex BB BN » BB & 5ELUE B AE)

2

2.7

2.8

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Impairment of Assets (Continued)

- Recognition of Impairment Losses
An impairment loss is recognised in the income and
expenditure statement whenever the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognised to reduce the carrying amount of
the asset or assets in the cash-generating unit on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs

to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

- Reversals of Impairment Losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. A reversal of impairment loss
is limited to the asset's carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to the income and expenditure statement in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity investments. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at the initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at
every reporting date.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the income and expenditure statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of

ownership.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2008/2009
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2.8

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(0

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified as fair value through profit or
loss if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term or if so designated by management. Assets in
this category are classified as current assets if they are either
held for trading or are expected to be realised within 12
months of the balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value are
presented in the income and expenditure statement in the
period in which they arise. Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the
income and expenditure statement as part of interest and
net investment income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables representing time deposits are
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They
arise when the Group provides money or services directly to
a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable. They
are included in current assets, except for maturities greater
than 12 months after the balance sheet date. These are
classified as non-current assets. They are initially recognised
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, unless the discounting

effect is insignificant, less provision for impairment.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the management has the positive intention
and ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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2

2.8

2.9

2.10

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. If there is objective evidence of an impairment loss
on loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments carried at
amortised cost, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The amount of the loss is recognised in the

income and expenditure statement.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid
prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions or reference to other instruments that are substantially

the same and discounted cash flow analysis.

Accounts and other receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of receivables
is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the terms of the
receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate, unless
the discounting effect is insignificant. The carrying amount of the
assets is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the income and expenditure
statement. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to the income and expenditure
statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and their maturity
dates are within three months from the date of acquisition.
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2.11

2.12

2.13

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Accounts payable and accruals

Accounts payable and accruals are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, unless the discounting effect is insignificant.
They are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of directly
attributable transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in the income and expenditure statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Borrowings are
classified into current and non-current liabilities. They are classified
as current liabilities unless the Group has unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance

sheet date.

Employee benefits
(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for unutilised annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Superannuation scheme

The Institute has set up a superannuation scheme (the
“Scheme”) to provide its employees with benefits on
retirement or termination of employment.

Members of the Scheme contribute 5% of their basic monthly
salaries to the Scheme and benefits are paid to them on
their retirement or on leaving employment subject to certain
conditions as stipulated in the Trust Deed. Contributions to
the Scheme are expensed as incurred and other than those
monthly contributions, the Institute has no further obligation
for the payment of termination or retirement benefits of its
employees.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Ex BB BN » BB & 5ELUE B AE)

2

2.13

2.14

2.15

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(@] Mandatory provident fund scheme

The Group has established mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF scheme”) in Hong Kong. The assets of
the MPF scheme are held in separate trustee-administered
funds. Both the Group and the employees are required to
contribute 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a maximum of $1,000 per employee per month. The
Group’s contribution to the MPF scheme is expensed as

incurred.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic

benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Recurrent subventions and grants are recognised as income over the
periods necessary to match them with the related costs which they
are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis, based on the
assumption that the conditions of the recurrent subventions can be

met.

Government subventions and grants, which are earmarked for
specific purposes, are initially recognised as deferred income when
there is a reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attached to it and that the subventions will be received.
They are recognised in the income and expenditure statement on a
systematic basis to match with the related costs for which they are
intended to be used.
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2.15

2.16

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Government subventions and grants, and donations spent on
capital expenditure are recorded as deferred capital funds and are
released and credited to the income and expenditure statement on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the related
assets when the assets are put in use, to the extent of the related
depreciation expense for that period.

Grants from government agencies for courses are recognised when
services are provided and complied with the conditions attached to
it. They are recognised in the income and expenditure statement
over the duration of the courses related.

Tuition programmes and other fees, and auxiliary services income
are recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of the courses
or services to which they relate.

Donations in cash and cash equivalents or other investment
instruments for general purposes are recognised as income at
fair values when it is probable that they will be received, which is
generally upon their receipt.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the income and expenditure
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Leased incentives are
recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to the income and expenditure statement in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Ex BB BN » BB & 5ELUE B AE)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 EEGGBORME 4
(Continued)
2.17 Related parties 217 BAHA
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered MAMBHRERME - TINES—HFARAEERER
to be related to the Group if: B BEEsE 7T
a) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one (F) ZA—FEAFTB-—RIERFPNHE
or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise B BEESEES AR EE AR EE
significant influence over the Group in making financial R BRI ERKEERTE - Al
and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over the EEHIAEE
Group;
b) the Group and the party are subject to common control; (2) FEEEZS—FER—ZH 2T
o) the party is a subsidiary, an associate of the Group or a joint (R) ZHE—HARAZENMBEAR - BEQ
venture in which the Group is a partner; A AEEEAGEENEGERE
d) the party is a member of key management personnel of (T) &% RAEENHERBEEAR @ %
the Group, or a close family member of such an individual, B0 4R fl/\%@%” PHREKE » S F
or is an entity under the control, joint control or significant §J¢ BIEAES - HEEHRERTE
influence of such individuals; KRB
e) the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (a) (®) Z>B—FH=% (F) BRALANS— 7‘7‘&’\]
or is an entity under the control, joint control or significant AREVHREKE » X2t 4
influence of such individuals; or TH|  EFEIEHKEAFENER Eﬁz
f) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the (B) ®A—ATRAARENERREERE
benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that is a FHEMEENEE RN MEOBEREZ
related party of the Group. EFIEE -
Close family members of an individual are those family members who HEABREYVNOREX SR ERBHMERE
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that individual in BHRSF AR ERGEASZEZEN
their dealings with the entity. KEKE °
3  Financial risk and fund risk management 3 TR RE K 4 B A BE
3.1 Financial risk factors 3.1 HBEBEZE
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: REEREBARELBU B AR - SMER -
foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate EERR  RPBERARLRFERR - NEE
risk. The Group’s overall risk management procedures focus on the FEERBER S H XN B TISH A B
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimise potential M WSRESREASREETHRROEED
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. R E -
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3.1

Financial risk and fund risk management
(Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk

(i

Foreign exchange risk

The Group conducts its operation in Hong Kong with
its transactions denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
The Group derives its operation income mainly in Hong
Kong dollars. The Group’s foreign currency exposures
arise mainly from and are substantially limited to, the
exchange rate movements between Hong Kong dollars
and United States dollars because most of the financial
assets held under treasury investments and cash balances
which are subjected to foreign exchange movements
are denominated in United States dollars. Since Hong
Kong dollars is pegged to United States dollars under
the Linked Exchange Rate System, the foreign exchange
exposure between United States dollars and Hong Kong

dollars is therefore limited.

As at 30 June 2009, the financial assets held under
treasury investment are significant to the Group.
However, as such foreign exchange exposure does not
have significant impact to the Group, no sensitivity
analysis is performed.

The following table details the Group’s and the Institute’s
exposure at the balance sheet date to currency risk
arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in Hong Kong
dollars.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ki
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (b SB#HBHS) » A< 5L B AE(T)

3 Financial risk and fund risk management 3 MBI R SR B (A
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 H¥EKBEZE &)
@) Market risk (Continued) (F) msERE (&
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (i) INERR (&)
Group A5
United States Australian Canadian Pound New Zealand
Dollars Dollars Dollars Sterling Dollars
e SBIT mneEXx e FPaRT
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Tt T T
2009 —EThE

Held-to-maturity investments BEZIHAKE 23,868 - - - -
Time deposits EHTFER 368,154 2,843 1,533 3,022 630
Cash and cash equivalents RekBFLEEY 89,859 2,295 562 1,530 576
Accounts payable and accruals  FER R ERTIER (320) (190) - (16) -

Net exposure arising from EREEME EREEN
recognised assets and liabilities — ERAEFEE 481,561 4,948 2,095 4,536 1,206
United States Australian Canadian Pound New Zealand
Dollars Dollars Dollars Sterling Dollars
Ev BIT meEXT HEE EaET
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T FT T F

2008 s

Held-to-maturity investments HEZEIHAKE 6,287 - - - -
Time deposits TEBATF AR 254,270 525 1,235 363 3,634
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEED 204,691 866 1,227 1,564 1,352
Accounts payable and accruals  FEfFARF X EFTIE B (934) - - - (182)

Net exposure arising from EHREENEEMELERN
recognised assets and liabilities — EBAEEEE 464,314 1,391 2,462 1,927 4,804
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3 Financial risk and fund risk management 3 Y 5 JEL i e 4 R B A B ()

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 H¥EKBEZR #&)
(a) Market risk (Continued) (F) TmERE &
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (iy SNERBR (&
United States Australian Canadian Pound New Zealand
Dollars Dollars Dollars Sterling Dollars
=M BIT mERT Ex PRI
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T Tt T
2009 —g2ehE

Held-to-maturity investments BEZIHAKRE 23,868 - - - -
Time deposits TE BATF K 368,154 2,843 1,109 3,022 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBF2ZEY 89,859 1,922 495 1,530 474
Accounts payable and accruals  FE R X ERTIE B (320) (190) - (16) -

Net exposure arising from EREEME EEEN
recognised assets and liabilities — ERAEFEE 481,561 4,575 1,604 4,536 474
United States Australian Canadian Pound New Zealand
Dollars Dollars Dollars Sterling Dollars
ETT BT meExxT HeE FoET
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FT T FT FT T

2008 s

Held-to-maturity investments HEZIHAKE 6,287 - - - -
Time deposits TEHER 254,270 - 965 - 3,634
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBALEED 204,691 154 532 1,564 1,352
Accounts payable and accruals AR ERTIE B (934) - - - (182)

Net exposure arising from CREREEMEERMELDN
recognised assets and liabilities — RBRAYEFEH 464,314 154 1,497 1,564 4,804

EBHBESRKR2008/20098 K| E 27
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Ex BB BN » BB & 5ELUE B AE)

3  Financial risk and fund risk management
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises mainly from the
interest-bearing financial assets held under treasury
investments, which are reviewed on a regular basis in
accordance with the Group’s policies and guidelines.

Based on the simulations performed at 30 June 2009,
if interest rates on interest-bearing bank deposits had
been 25 basis point higher or 25 basis point lower with
all other variables held constant, deficit for the year
would have been $238K (2008: $60K) lower or $29K
(2008: $39K) higher, as a result of higher/lower interest
income on bank deposits.

The cash flow interest rate risk is considered low as
the Group has no significant interest-bearing financial
liabilities.

The Group’s long-term borrowings are non-interest
bearing and although it exposes the Group to fair value
interest rate risk, this does not have adverse impact
to the Group. Management believes that the Group's
fair value interest rate risk is minimal and no sensitivity
analysis is performed.

Price risk

(iii

=

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss. The Group is not
exposed to commodity price risk. To manage its equity
price risk, the portfolio is diversified in accordance with
the limits set by the Group. Given the insignificant
amount of the portfolio of listed equity investments held
by the Group, management believes that the Group’s
equity price risk is minimal.

(b) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its deposits
and cash at banks, accounts receivable and investment
balances with financial institutions. There are procedures in
place to mitigate the risk and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored closely by management on an ongoing
basis.
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3.1

Financial risk and fund risk management
(Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

()

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk in investment balances with financial
institutions and deposits and cash at banks are limited
because the counterparties are mainly banks and financial
institutions with high credit-ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies. For banks and financial institutions,
only independently rated parties with a minimum Moody’s
rating of “A" are accepted. The Institute has no significant
concentration of credit risk and the risk exposure is diversified
over a large number of counterparties. The Institute has
policies that limit the amount of credit exposure to any single
financial institution. In addition, the credit risk on cash and
deposits placed with local licenced banks is limited because
those deposits are currently protected by the Deposit
Protection Scheme and guaranteed by the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”) Government's
Exchange Fund until the end of 2010.

Accounts receivable in respect of tuition fees are receivable
by due dates preset every year according to the academic
calendar. The Group has a policy of withholding the issue of
academic documents to students to enhance the quality of
accounts receivable.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements regularly to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements
in both short and longer terms.

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available to meet
liabilities as they fall due, and it results from mismatch of
assets and liabilities. The Group performs regular projected
cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk to ensure that all
liabilities due and known funding requirements could be met.
Prudent liquidity management also includes maintaining
adequate credit facilities in the Group’s approved banks.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the Institute’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balance
for accounts payable and accruals due within 12 months
equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is
not significant.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (k5B #HBHS) - A 8L B AE()

3 Financial risk and fund risk management 3 Y 5 T i B 4 SR B A PR (4
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 H¥EBEZE &)
(0) Liquidity risk (Continued) (A)  RBEER (&)
Group F£E
Upto 3 months to 1 year to Over

3 months 1 year 2 years 2 years Total
ZEARNAT ZEAE—F —FEZF —FNE et
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT BT BT I BT

At 30 June 2009 R-BZAFEXRA=TH
Borrowings B3 - 1,500 1,500 3,000 6,000
Accounts payable and accruals  FE IR ERTRUIE 90,353 2,666 1,176 - 94,195
Other provisions Hth 100 - - 9,594 9,694
90,453 4,166 2,676 12,594 109,889

At 30 June 2008 R-BBENFXRA=TH
Borrowings B - 1,500 1,500 4,500 7,500
Accounts payable and accruals AR fERTRIE 82,449 98,624 898 - 181,971
Other provisions Hib B s 274 450 7,412 - 8,136
82,723 100,574 9,810 4,500 197,607

Institute #E%

Upto 3 monthsto 1 year to Over

3 months 1 year 2 years 2 years Total
“EAKNAT =EAZE—F —FE=F ZEE 4R
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT BT T BT BT BRI

At 30 June 2009 R-BBAFRA=TH
Borrowings B - 1,500 1,500 3,000 6,000
Accounts payable and accruals  FEfBE M ERTFUE 86,186 2,605 1,176 - 89,967
Other provisions HAib s 100 - = 9,594 9,694
86,286 4,105 2,676 12,594 105,661

At 30 June 2008 R-ZBENFARA=TH
Borrowings B3 = 1,500 1,500 4,500 7,500
Accounts payable and accruals B IR M ERTFUE 70,949 98,571 826 - 170,346
Other provisions HAin s 150 450 7,412 = 8,012
71,099 100,521 9,738 4,500 185,858

30 The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2008/2009



3.2

3.3

Financial risk and fund risk management
(Continued)

Fund risk management

The Institute is a government subvented education institution
established under the laws of HKSAR, which objects are to provide
studies and training in teacher education and facilities for research
into and the development of education. The Institute is not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirements, except as stated in
note 17, and its activities are mainly funded by government grants
and tuition fees, the spending of which is governed by the UGC
Notes on Procedures and other grant conditions. The Institute’s
activities are also funded by donations and funds generated from

self-financing activities.

The various Restricted and Other Funds represent the unspent
balance of such grants, income, donations and other specific
purpose funds. These funds are managed according to the relevant
grant and funding conditions, where applicable, and the Institute’s
investment and financial management guidelines and procedures

with the view of meeting the objects of the Institute.

None of the Institute’s subsidiaries is subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements and their capital management policies
are governed by their own financial management guidelines and
procedures with the view of safeguarding the subsidiaries’ ability to
continue as a going concern.

Fair value estimation

The carrying values less impairment provision of receivables and
payables are a reasonable approximation of their fair values. The
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments, unless the effect of discounting will be immaterial.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (k5B #HBHS) - A 8L B AE()

4

Fixed assets

4

V¥l R

Group &M

Cost:
At 1 July 2007
Additions
Disposals

At 30 June 2008
At 1 July 2008
Additions

Disposals

At 30 June 2009

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 July 2007

Charge for the year
Written back on disposal
At 30 June 2008

At 1 July 2008

Charge for the year

Written back on disposal

At 30 June 2009

Net book value:

At 30 June 2009

At 30 June 2008

REHTE
R_ZETLF+H—H
REZFE
BRERED
R=ZZN\FNA=TH
R-ZZN\FLA—H
REZHE
BRE &R

R-ZZEZNFRA=+H

RRENFE -

RZZZNFRA=+H

R-ZEENFRA=+H

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2008/2009

Leasehold Fixtures and

Buildings  improvements equipment Total
BF  HEmEEE KENE FEE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT BT BHTT BETT
2,379,612 60,252 246,309 2,686,173
1,656 10,886 20,552 33,094
- (28) (26,671) (26,699)
2,381,268 71,110 240,190 2,692,568
2,381,268 71,110 240,190 2,692,568
447 10,635 47,496 58,578

- (85) (25,132) (25,217)
2,381,715 81,660 262,554 2,725,929
320,016 23,489 222,794 566,299
47,614 9,170 11,700 68,484

- (23) (26,522) (26,545)

367,630 32,636 207,972 608,238
367,630 32,636 207,972 608,238
47,650 11,588 15,937 75,175

- (81) (25,131) (25,212)
415,280 44,143 198,778 658,201
1,966,435 37,517 63,776 2,067,728
2,013,638 38,474 32,218 2,084,330




Fixed assets (Continued)

Cost:

At 1 July 2007
Additions
Disposals

At 30 June 2008
At 1 July 2008
Additions

Disposals

At 30 June 2009

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 July 2007
Charge for the year
Written back on disposal

At 30 June 2008

At 1 July 2008

Charge for the year
Written back on disposal

At 30 June 2009

Net book value:

At 30 June 2009

At 30 June 2008

REHTE
R_ZETELF+H—-H
REZFE
BRERED
R=ZBN\FAA=TH
R-ZZN\FEA—H
REEHE
BREREE

R-ZZEZAFNA=1+H

BRENFE :

RZZZNAFNA=1+H

R-ZZEZEN\FRA=T+A

4

R (A

)

Institute Bz

Leasehold Fixtures and

Buildings  improvements equipment Total
BFE  HEmEEE KB NFZE “En
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT BT BT BETT
2,375,848 57,569 239,472 2,672,889
1,656 10,803 20,222 32,681
- - (26,194) (26,194)
2,377,504 68,372 233,500 2,679,376
2,377,504 68,372 233,500 2,679,376
447 10,280 47,248 57,975
- - (25,068) (25,068)
2,377,951 78,652 255,680 2,712,283
319,485 21,542 216,933 557,960
47,541 8,717 11,113 67,371
- - (26,042) (26,042)

367,026 30,259 202,004 599,289
367,026 30,259 202,004 599,289
47,577 11,400 15,496 74,473
- - (25,068) (25,068)

414,603 41,659 192,432 648,694
1,963,348 36,993 63,248 2,063,589
2,010,478 38,113 31,496 2,080,087

ERHEER2008/20098 B |/ &
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION &/A# B 26t
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (k5B #HBHS) - A 8L B AE()

5 Investments 5 ®"E
Group and Institute Z<&@EMKEx
2009 2008
$'000 $'000
BETT BT
Investments in subsidiaries and HbTEHT B A R
institutional entities HBEHERIRE 1 1
Note a: Investments in subsidiaries

Note b:

GELE

WEZ -

The Institute has a 100% (2008: 100%) interest, without investment cost, in The HKIEd Schools Limited which was incorporated in Hong Kong on
14 December 1998 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company is to plan, establish and manage schools.

The Institute has a 100% (2008: 100%) interest, without investment cost, in HKIEd School of Continuing and Professional Education Limited (“HKIEd
SCPE”) which was incorporated in Hong Kong on 28 June 2006 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company is to set up,
maintain and operate, in conjunction with the Institute for the promotion and advancement of professional, technical and continuing education,
foster and provide courses leading to awards as well as courses of general interest, and where appropriate, provide learning opportunities in or
outside Hong Kong. The HKIEd SCPE has assumed the responsibilities and mission of the Division of Continuing Professional Education of the
Institute since 1 July 2006.

The results of these subsidiaries are accounted for in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
Investments in institutional entities

The Institute holds 1 share of $500 (2008: 1 share of $500), representing 12.5% of the share capital of the Joint Universities Computer Centre
Limited, a company providing computer services for the UGC-funded Higher Educational Institutions in Hong Kong.

The Institute has a 12.5% (2008: 12.5%) interest, without investment cost, in Joint University Programmes Admissions System (“JUPAS”) which
was incorporated on 18 September 1990 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company is to administer and operate the joint
admissions system for and on behalf of each member of the JUPAS.

The Institute holds a 25% (2008: 25%) interest, without investment cost, in EdExchange Limited which was incorporated in Hong Kong on
21 March 2005 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company is to promote education and to provide financial assistance
and subsidies for the purposes of education and training to educational charities, scholarships, fellowships and bursaries in Hong Kong and
elsewhere.

The Institute has a 12.5% (2008: 12.5%) interest, without investment cost, in Joint Quality Review Committee Limited (“JORC") which was
incorporated on 26 August 2005 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company is to provide and implement a peer review
framework for the quality assurance of self-financing, associate-degree programmes in the continuing education units of the members in the
JORC.

Given the nature of these institutional entities and the insignificance of the investment costs, the Institute did not account for them in its financial
records. In addition, taking into consideration that there are no significant operations in these institutional entities and they are immaterial to the
Group, their results are not accounted for in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

TEWTE R RIATIRE

H A EEHE B ERBRRAAZ2100% (ZFZENF : 100%) #z (REREKAE) o RAFAR—ANNE+Z A+ AEEETME LB —EERERAGR

HEmRES  BURERZER -

HT A B U E B B R U BB AR AN A ( [#HEHE S ) 2100% (ZEEN\F  100%) #aw (REREKRE) o WARIRZFEENFNA=1/\HIE
EBAMBE L B —EERBR AR EXBOZEHGREAEERLE  (GEEX - RINIFEHNE - FENREREEZUR —RIBERE - I (FEERR
T) 1REBE B GINGEEHE - FEAE R - TTNFLA—HE  BEE THRE T EREHESHNELAED

ULEHTE R A 2B S AT E BT & B SRR A -

TR B HIBAIRE

Hbr#5H —REMEBEES00T (ZFENF : —REEEKL00T) 2 XLHA P OBRAFRYE - HERZRARRAZ12.5% ° ZAFFEBIRHEKRE THE
BEONEESEHERRK -

HBT I A LA W ER ( [HBEE] ) 12.5% (ZFT/\F : 12.6%) #m (RAREAKE) o WEBER - ANTFENATN\AFMEKL 5—EERER R - HE
HER X BLEBEAGER S EBMNEEHE WA E -

HITHEHB 5 0925% (ZFTN\F : 26%) #m (REREKAE)  WWHEER-ZTRF=A-+—AEEETMR LA —FHIERERAE] - AAMRIGEHEF
% WIRHBKR T RN HESE - UATBE MM TN EESEEEHESS  HHAESMHES -

HHEBREERNEZEESE ([F88] ) 12.6% (ZFT)\F  125%) Bm (REREKE) - WEER —TTRF)\A =+ ARz —FERERAE]

HE R RESGAKBNIHERETTA S 8 BE8IE 1T SRR AT TR R HIE

BRI S BB A B IR B TA - BT it SR R A R B RSGCER T © S - BRI S B HE L EEANEENMH R EBZETK - MEFIaEE
RELCANEBFE I FRERA
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6

Institute Bz

Financial instruments by category

Financial assets as per balance
sheets as at 30 June 2009
Held-to-maturity investments (Note 7)
Time deposits (Note 8)

Accounts receivable (Note 9)
Security deposits (Note 9)
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss (Note 10)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 11)

Financial assets as per balance
sheets as at 30 June 2008
Held-to-maturity investments (Note 7)
Time deposits (Note 8)

Accounts receivable (Note 9)
Security deposits (Note 9)
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss (Note 10)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 771)

Financial assets as per balance
sheets as at 30 June 2009
Held-to-maturity investments (Note 7)
Time deposits (Note 8)

Accounts receivable (Note 9)

Accounts due from subsidaries (Note 9)

Security deposits (Note 9)
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss (Note 10)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 71)

Financial assets as per balance
sheets as at 30 June 2008
Held-to-maturity investments (Note 7)
Time deposits (Note 8)

Accounts receivable (Note 9)

Accounts due from subsidaries (Note 9)

Security deposits (Note 9)
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss (Note 10)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 11)

LREE RE-FTThEF
NA=Z+HAWEEAER
BEZIEBBEE (HE7)
TEHIER (Hfat 8)
FEURBR R (Ffat 9)
RERSE (H3E9)
BRAREBEFABRNSH

&E (HzF10)
ReRReEEY Ffat11)

SREE > RE-ZTN\F
NAStHHMEEARER
REZERBMAKRE (F:E7)
TEHTFER (H138)

FEMERSR (H1:E9)

REBRE (H3F9)

BRAREBEFABRENSH
&E (ffzF10)

ReRBELEEY (FaE11)

SREE RE-TZTIF
NA=t+HWNEEAER
HERFEREE (KT 7)
TEHRTFR (Hfat 8)
FEMSBRFR (HTaE 9)

FEULH I R R RRIR (f7£9)

RERE (H3E9)

EBEARBEFABZNSH
BE (HzF10)

ReRIRSEEY (Hat11)

SHEE RE-ZT/N\F
AASTENBESER
BEZINHRKE (HF 7)
EHF (ATt 8)
FEMERSK (Fifat 9)

FEURH B X R RRIR (f7£9)

RERE (H3E9)

BRAREBEFABRNEH
B&E (HfzE10)

ReRReEEY (Ffat11)

6 b TR (FHB0)

Financial Assets at

Group F&E

fair value through Held-to-

Loans and profit or loss maturity
receivables RAARBETA investments Total
B AR BENSREE FAZIHBRE fict o)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BETT BETFT BETT BETFT
- - 23,868 23,868
790,494 - - 790,494
32,252 = = 32,252
1,023 - - 1,023
- 12,555 - 12,555
286,345 - - 286,345
1,110,114 12,555 23,868 1,146,537
- - 36,332 36,332
710,513 - - 710,513
28,592 - - 28,592
471 - - 471
- 16,179 - 16,179
506,609 - - 506,609
1,246,185 16,179 36,332 1,298,696

Financial Assets at

fair value through Held-to-

Loans and profit or loss maturity
receivables BRREERA investments Total
B AR BENSREE HEZIHAKRE it
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT BETT BETRE BT
- - 23,868 23,868
789,306 - - 789,306
27,667 - - 27,667
4,674 - - 4,674
1,017 - - 1,017
- 12,555 - 12,555
254,848 - - 254,848
1,077,512 12,555 23,868 1,113,935
- - 36,332 36,332
709,179 - - 709,179
24,089 - - 24,089
4,400 = = 4,400
464 - - 464
- 16,179 - 16,179
475,624 = . 475,624
1,213,756 16,179 36,332 1,266,267

ERHEER2008/20098 B |/ &
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (k5B #HBHS) - A 8L B AE()
6  Financial instruments by category (Continued) 6 ST R BRI 4D
Group & &£E Institute iz
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BETT ST BETT BT
Financial liabilities as SRIEHE REBEEAER
per balance sheets
Other financial liabilities HthemaE
Accounts payable and accruals FEA BRI FE 5T R0IE
(Note 12) (Kizt12) 94,195 181,971 89,967 170,346
Borrowings (Note 14) B (Kt 14) 5,576 6,870 5,576 6,870
99,771 188,841 95,543 177,216
7  Held-to-maturity investments 7 HAEIIMHZE
Group and Institute A &M@z
2009 2008
$'000 $'000
BETT BT
Listed, at amortised cost T FREESHR AR
- listed outside Hong Kong - ERBASN LT 21,983 6,287
Unlisted, at amortised cost JEET - IR 1,885 30,045
23,868 36,332
Less: Current portion classified W mBE D ERARENEE
as current assets (6,295) (30,045)
17,573 6,287
8  Time deposits 8  wiEH
Group &M@ Institute Bz
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BET T BT BET T BT
Time deposits with original REIHA B 3B 31E A 5%
maturity over 3 months LA _EEYE B R
or above
Current portion MENERD
- Unpledged - RYEHER 718,687 682,864 717,499 681,530
- Pledged - BEfEER 12,000 21,000 12,000 21,000
730,687 703,864 729,499 702,530
Non-current portion EMEFB S 59,807 6,649 59,807 6,649
790,494 710,513 789,306 709,179
The effective interest rate on time deposits with original maturity [REVEA A BB =1 A sIA E8YF BF R B A
over 3 months or above was 2.33% (2008: 3%). These deposits RAE233% (ZEZTN\F : 3%)  WEFZAMN
have a weighted average maturity of 237 days (2008: 168 days). EFHREAB/R237A (ZZTZT/\F : 168H) -
The pledged time deposits of $6 million (2008: $15 million) and $6 EEFREEABET (ZTENF B —TH
million (2008: $6 million) are used respectively as securities for a BET) BB REET (Z2T)N\F  BERA

loan from the HKSAR Government as disclosed in Note 14 and for
the Group’s bank overdrafts facilities which have not been utilised
as at year end (2008: $Nil).

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2008/2009
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9  Accounts receivable, deposits and prepayments

Group F&@E Institute Bz

Accounts receivable (Note a)
Less: Provision for impairment

(Note b)

Amounts due from subsidiaries

(Note ¢)

Security deposits

Maximum exposure to credit risk

Prepayments

Group #£H Institute 2z

9

WM sk ~ $2 4 e Pk OE

2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
FEUBRR (KHfaEH) 32,252 28,592 27,667 24,089
R ER

(H1:£2) (2,431) (2,339) (1,286) (1,213)
29,821 26,253 26,381 22,876

e Y PfTB A RIRO IR
(ETR)) - - 4,674 4,400
REZRE 1,023 471 1,017 464
EER AR RE 30,844 26,724 32,072 27,740
TEfTFIE 3,593 1,265 3,465 943
34,437 27,989 35,537 28,683

Accounts receivable ()  EUERR

As at 30 June 2009, the Group’s and the Institute’s accounts
receivable of $2,686K (2008: $7,310K) and $1,676K (2008:
$5,539K) were past due but not impaired respectively.
These mainly relate to a number of students and the HKSAR
Government for whom there is no recent history of default.
The ageing analysis of these accounts receivable is as
follows:

EZZZAFRA=TH  AEEERHK
2 A e EIRE R R D B 578
B—AANTNABATT (ZZ2TN\F 8
Bta=t—8x) LE¥-—att&8
RFT (ZZEZNF  BEIBLT=8
ATTT) - WEFRTEFREMLEH
REFRHENZZEEREBRERF -
It E USRS E R D ATAN TS

2009 2008 2009 2008

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

BT T BT T BT T BT T

Not past due AR Ef 27,135 18,943 24,705 17,337
Past due by: B

0 — 3 months 0—3fEA 2,057 6,052 1,200 4,788

3 — 6 months 3—61fEA 383 479 304 286

6 — 12 months 6—12 @A 200 455 126 416

Over 12 months BB 121E A 46 324 46 49

29,821 26,253 26,381 22,876

(b) Provision for impairment of accounts receivable () EEEREEERE

As at 30 June 2009, except for the Group’s bad debts written
off directly to the income and expenditure statement of
$Nil (2008: $28K), the Group’s and the Institute’s accounts
receivable of $2,431K(2008: $2,339K)and of $1,286K (2008:
$1,213K) were impaired respectively and full provision has
been made accordingly. These mainly relate to a number of
students for whom there are unexpected difficult economic
situations. The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

RIBZAFRA=1TH BTAEEE
BEBRAMSRMENEREETT (=F
TNE BB BT I ARER
SR EIE L 2 8RB
BERORABE BN+ =8—Fx (=
ZTNF BB =t=BNLTFT) &
BBt NEBATE (ZE2N\EF:
B¥—A-T—B=T) - UFRAET
2WREHHRIEHUIMOE R 2
e IEFRUGRBRE AT ¢

EBHBEEKR2008/2009U HRE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (k5B #HBHS) - A 8L B AE()

9  Accounts receivable, deposits and prepayments 9

WE Wk ~ 524 K FELAHROE (49)

(Continued)
(b) Provision for impairment of accounts receivable (Continued) () FEWERRERERE (&)
Group F"&@E Institute Bz
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT BEF T BT T BT
Past due by: 2

0 - 3 months 0—3 @A 332 115 332 115
3 — 6 months 3—6 @A 365 427 365 427
6 — 12 months 6— 12 @A 509 596 509 596
Over 12 months wBiE121EA 1,225 1,201 80 75
2,431 2,339 1,286 1,213

Movements on the provision for impairment of accounts

receivable are as follows:

MR RO AR EE ST

Group F&@E Institute Bz

2009 2008 2009 2008

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

BT BT T BYETT BT T

Balance at 1 July Wt A—Br&ERE 2,339 3,723 1,213 2,106

Provision for impairment A 1,305 1,294 1,286 1,213
Receivables written off during F N EH YR E R

the year as uncollectible TEEM B FRIE (1,042) (1,959) (1,042) (1,788)

Unused amounts reversed R FRIBERE 171) (719) 171) (318)

Balance at 30 June RANA=+THER 2,431 2,339 1,286 1,213

The Group has recognised a loss of $1,305K (2008: $1,294K)
for the impairment of its accounts receivable during the year
ended 30 June 2009. The loss has been mainly included in
office expenses under “Instruction and research”, “Other
academic services”, “Management and general” and
“Students and general education services” in the income
and expenditure statement, to the extent of $42K (2008:
$208K), $127K (2008: Nil), $1,029K (2008: $1,052K) and

$107K (2008: $34K) respectively.

Theunusedimpairmentprovisionof $171K(2008: $719K)was
reversed and credited to office expenses under “Instruction
and research”, “Other academic services”, “Management

Iu

and general” and “Student and general education services”
in the income and expenditure statement, to the extent of
$Nil (2008: $401K), $31K (2008: Nil), $136K (2008: $276K),

$4K (2008: $42K) respectively.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2008/2009
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% [EERRITH] AR T8ER—BH
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BT (Z22N\F B - +E/\TO)
BEL-_B8tT (Z22N\F:Tx) B
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B-Frx) MEETEETT (Z2ZNF 8
BB+ -
APAHBERBEEETLE—TT (ZFZN
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[BERE—RITHR] AR [BER—RHBER
Bl ORAERIA  BEIRBIAEETIT (=
ZTN\E BN+ E—T)  ABE=E-T
T (ZRBNEFE Fx)  BET=ERTI(
“ETNF BB T EERTL) REBNT
T (ZERBNF  BEENE_TT) -



9  Accounts receivable, deposits and prepayments

(Continued)

() Amounts due from subsidiaries

The amounts due are unsecured and repayable within 30

days.

Except for the amount of $184K (2008: $296K)

due from a subsidiary which is interest-free, the remaining

balance is interest bearing at monthly savings account

interest rate quoted by bank, and is charged on the overdue

balance.

The effective interest rate as at year end is 0% (2008:

0.25%) per annum.

10 Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

9

10

JE W sk ~ 524 K FELAHSRIE (49)

(R)  EKEBLRRKIEA

IR R BRI AMAR =+ HAE
B o BT RN B A RNFUREE T+
NEOTT (ZZ22N\F: BE_+TIE
RNTL) mRBHN - HBFIRRIRITE A

[REETF N EE TR E

IS -

C WEAEB S

RNELEANERNEREF0% (ZTF

J\EE £ 0.25%) °

o e fE A RE AR 25 00 4 3l B

Group and Institute <&@

2009 2008
$'000 $'000
BET T BT T
Investment in listed unit trust in BB L MELEFERE
Hong Kong, at fair value (RAREE) 11,419 9,184
Unlisted structured notes and e E MBI BRNER
deposits, at fair value (RAREE) - 5,534
Investment in unlisted unit trust, FELETEMNEFRE
at fair value (RAREE) 1,136 1,461
12,555 16,179
Note:  Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Fitat - {E?A‘ﬁ f?ﬁ%fAiﬁéEﬂﬁ@ﬁEﬂ?ﬂﬁ BEZBENRLRF
are recorded in “interest and net investment income” in the income and B [ B REA ] (HiE21) -
expenditure statement (Note 21).
11 Cash and cash equivalents 11 BarBL%EYD
Group #&E Institute Hifz
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
B¥TT BT BT BT
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFEES 100,248 23,997 76,511 17,289
Short-term bank deposits FREARITIE 186,097 482,612 178,337 458,335
286,345 506,609 254,848 475,624

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 0.39%

(2008: 1.9%). These deposits have a weighted average maturity of

43 days (2008: 15 days).

HHRITERNERNEXR0.39% (ZEZN

F:1.9%)
(ZEZEN\F 1 158) -

UL FE RN H A R43R

EBHBEEKR2008/2009U HRE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (k5B #HBHS) - A 8L B AE()
12 Accounts payable and accruals 12 EAHIR K K st sk E
Group #£&E Institute %z

2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT BETT BETT BT
Accounts payable (Note b) FERTERIR (MT?Z) 51,412 128,918 49,786 124,756
Accruals FERT R 40,301 50,507 37,699 43,044
Other deposits Eﬁﬂﬁiﬁ 2,482 2,546 2,482 2,546
94,195 181,971 89,967 170,346
Other provisions Hib Bt 9,694 8,136 9,694 8,012
Receipts in advance (Note ¢) TEWEIE (F1aEA) 73,488 25,532 72,568 24,722
177,377 215,639 172,229 203,080

(a) The carrying amounts of accounts payable and accruals (F) BEZZZANFR-ZZNEFSA=T
approximates their fair values for both financial years ended Hi-m1ESRFE, BRI ER
30 June 2009 and 2008. HHEReEEE AR EERE -

()  Included in accounts payable as at 30 June 2009, is a () RZTZENFRNA=THHEMNERE
provision of approximately $20 million (2008: $97 million) BROBE_TET (ZZZNF : B
of subvention repayable to the HKSAR Government. NFrEET) OWEE EREENE

BREBTHEE

(© During the year, the Group received a grant from The Hong (A FR AKRERETEEFEAERETR
Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust in the amount of $382K CES—ZREBE=T\EB_TIH
for the project “Research Effectiveness of Early Intervention WmYpE - BEXRHEAR [EHRE - &
for Chinese Kindergarteners at Risk for Specific Learning TeEsEtE - BEHRERRE
Difficulties” and the unrecognised income is included in HigEEtEl ] WIRE - AR UAR
receipts in advance. L AFEYGRIE -

13  Provision for employee benefits 13 @ B s ol i i
Group #&H Institute Bz

2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BRETT BT T BT T BT

Staff costs: BEKA
Unutilised annual leave R EEEFR 34,730 28,740 33,613 27,938
Gratuities A< 34,704 28,829 33,308 27,884
Long service payment REBRG® 237 - 112 -
69,671 57,569 67,033 55,822

Payable: FERTR

Within 1 year —FR 52,746 43,407 50,745 41,975
After 1 year —F1& 16,925 14,162 16,288 13,847
69,671 57,569 67,033 55,822
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14 Borrowings 14

Long-term loan, secured REFEF (BHF)
Less: Current portion classified B mBED ERARSEE
as current liabilities

The maturity of long-term loan REEZMEHBMT
is as follows:

Within 1 year 1R

Between 1 and 2 years 1FE2FR

Between 2 and 5 years 2FE5FNR

Note:  The HKSAR Government agreed to provide a loan of $15 million to the Fat :

Institute to meet start-up costs of self-financing accredited post-secondary
programmes (e.q. Associate Degree Programmes). The loan is non-interest
bearing, repayable in equal annual instalments over a period of 10 years from
June 2004 and is secured by the Institute’s bank deposits of $6 million (2008:
$15 million) as disclosed in Note 8.

The carrying values are based on cash flows discounted using a rate based on
the then effective market borrowing rate of 3.0% (2008: 3.0%) and are all
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The fair value of borrowings approximates their carrying value for
financial years ended 30 June 2009 and 2008.

B

Group and Institute Z&<E B
2009 2008
$'000 $'000
BYTT BETT
5,576 6,870
(1,333) (1,294)
4,243 5,576
1,333 1,294
1,373 1,333
2,870 4,243

5,576 6,870

BEGERTRAEARGCEMER —TRAEBTEL U
8B EEHRATELRE (A8 2L2RE) WEHE
e ZEATEAFIE B =FBNFNAED +FEFE
HEE  AAHAGHRITENER " BET (ZFENF:
B —THHST) (EREHT - WM E8HTHE -

KREERBRE2REAEFNERTSEAFE3.0% (= F
TNGF :3.0%) BBETE - 2ELUBTTRE -

BEZZZNFR-_ZEZNERA=THLER
FE  BROAAR BEEEREERS

EBHBEEKR2008/2009U HRE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

[ A Ml

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION &A% B 26

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (k5B #HBHS) - A 8L B AE()

15 Deferred income

Balance at 1 July
Subventions, grants and
donations received/receivable
Recognised during the year
Transferred to deferred
capital funds (Note 16)

Balance at 30 June

Balance representing:
Institute

Earmarked grants

- Research

- Immersion

- Home Financing Scheme

- Housing-related benefits other
than Home Financing Scheme

- Development of New Undergraduate
Program under 3+3+4
academic structure

- New initiative to 3+3+4

- Others

Capital grants and Alterations,
Additions, Repairs and

Improvements Block Allocation
Grants from government agencies

Subsidiary

Earmarked grants
- Others

Group

15 EmEWA
Group #£H Institute
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT T BT BETT BT
RtBE—BN&EE 217,242 158,475 217,101 158,475
B/ R HEE
B RIBRK 655,517 606,511 638,140 593,781
REE AR (595,224) (515,139) (579,693) (502,650)
ERSECEAES
(HIzE16) (57,937) (32,605) (57.,829) (32,505)
RAA=+HNEE 219,598 217,242 217,719 217,101
2009 2008
$'000 $'000
BETT BT T
R EE
E2
e B K
- 3 5,170 2,526
- E 39,969 36,969
- EFT& B2 85,924 96,925
- EEFEFEIZERE
RFEES S 18,604 15,334
-BR [==p ] 24
FIRBHEE
9,901 14,214
- == SHEF e 14,943 =
- Hith 28,271 29,909
ERBRRUGE - R -
HfE RS TR E
10,512 15,026
BT A IR 4,425 6,198
217,719 217,101
HEBATF
FEE R
- Eftb 1,879 141
REE 219,598 217,242
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16 Deferred capital funds

Balance at 1 July

Representing:

Buildings

Leasehold improvements
Fixtures and equipment

Transfer from deferred income
(Note 15)
Buildings
Leasehold improvements
Fixtures and equipment

Release to income and
expenditure statement
Buildings
Leasehold improvements
Fixtures and equipment

Balance at 30 June
Buildings

Leasehold improvements
Fixtures and equipment

17 Restricted funds

Balance at 1 July 2007

Transfer from income and
expenditure statement

Inter-fund transfer (Note 18)

Balance at 30 June 2008
and at 1 July 2008

Transfer to income and
expenditure statement

Inter-fund transfer (Note 18)

Balance at 30 June 2009

RtA—BW&E

X

W B

B B 2
il

HEYHEEE
KENFRE

il

EEREWA (HE 15)
BF

HEMEIR
EERE MR

AW R
BF

HEMHELAR
EERE MR

RAR=THNER
BF

HEMERER
BEEFE M

R-EZLFLA—BNER
EHWR

E MR (I 18)

R-ZBZENFAA=THRK
—EEN\FELtA-BNERE
BARE F

E MR (FI5E 18)
R-BZAEANA=THENES

16 IEmEHEALEE

Group &M@ Institute Bz

2009 2008 2009 2008

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

BT BB T BET T BB

2,083,175 2,118,587 2,079,640 2,114,444

2,013,637 2,059,595 2,010,479 2,056,364

38,176 36,461 38,113 36,027

31,362 22,531 31,048 22,053

2,083,175 2,118,587 2,079,640 2,114,444

448 1,656 448 1,656

10,280 10,803 10,280 10,803

47,209 20,146 47,101 20,046

57,937 32,605 57,829 32,505

(47,649) (47,614) (47,577) (47,541)

(11,463) (9,088) (11,400) (8,717)

(15,478) (11,315) (15,307) (11,051)

(74,590) (68,017) (74,284) (67,309)

1,966,436 2,013,637 1,963,350 2,010,479

36,993 38,176 36,993 38,113

63,093 31,362 62,842 31,048

2,066,522 2,083,175 2,063,185 2,079,640
17 feiks

Group and Institute Z&EEAHER
Unspent
Endowment balance for

funds research Total

BARES KRARFELEH Pk

$'000 $'000 $'000

BT BT T BT

18,359 9,031 27,390

10 - 10

- 11,255 11,255

18,369 20,286 38,655

2,994 - 2,994

- 525 525

21,363 20,811 42,174

EBHBESRKR2008/20098
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Notes to the Financial Statements B##HHE

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION &/A# B 26t
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Ex BB BN » BB & 5ELUE B AE)

17 Restricted funds (Continued) 17 #Herks @)
The breakdown and movements of endowment funds for the year ZETH /BT NFERZZEN | TLFEBEE
2007/08 and 2008/09 are analysed as follows: SEVERFIEE DT T -
Shun Hing
Cheung’s  Education
Family and Charity Lady lvy Wu Tin Ka Ping
Charity Fund Fund Scholarship Li & Fung Foundation
RIS EHHE #AZF%  Scholarships HKRIMA Total
BEES RkEEEs B2s fERBe HEow Rkl
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT BT BT BT BT BT
Balance at 1 July 2007 R-ZZBtLF+LA—H
WEEF 3,079 5,228 6,040 4,012 - 18,359
Income for the year REFZUA 107 214 259 181 - 761
Expenditure for the year REFERH (90) (255) (226) (180) = (751)
Balance at 30 June 2008 R=-ZZTNFASA=1+H
and at 1 July 2008 kK=ZZEN\FtHA—H
WEEF 3,096 5,187 6,073 4,013 - 18,369
Funds received EEBA - - - - 3,000 3,000
Income for the year REFZIRA 101 214 271 126 50 762
Expenditure for the year REFEZH (94) (310) (252) (112) - (768)
Balance at 30 June 2009 R=ZBThFASA=+H
Wi 3,103 5,091 6,092 4,027 3,050 21,363
(a) “Endowment funds” represent donations on which the () [BARES | BHREBEEENE
Institute would, according to the wishes of the donors, keep FEREECORSHE  WERBESMH
the principal intact and only use income generated from the EEOW AR FH 5 E BERAESHNIE
fund to support activities of designated purposes. e
(b) “Unspent balance for research” represents the total (2) [RAMETER] B TIREBETEMEER
remaining balances of funds designated for different RSmmnEeFIsREsE -
research projects.
18 Other funds 18 Hibx4
Group #&£E
General and Other
development operation Donations
reserve fund reserves and
—MRER Hfth  benefactions Total
EEES BIERE BRRIBE wz
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT BT BT I
Balance at 1 July 2007 R-ZZLtFLA—HWER 641,020 197,145 53,438 891,603
Transfer (to)/from income and B (AN)/ BIRXEE
expenditure statement (150,032) 30,084 2,403 (117,545)
Inter-fund transfer (Note 17) HEEMERR i 17) (10,477) (576) (202) (11,255)
Balance at 30 June 2008 and R=ZBENFAA=THR
at 1 July 2008 —EENFtA-HNERE 480,511 226,653 55,639 762,803
Transfer (to)/from income and () /Bl
expenditure statement (178,758) 42,602 8,388 (127,768)
Inter-fund transfer (Note 17) HEEMERR M 17) (525) - = (525)
Balance at 30 June 2009 R-BZENFARA=THNERE 301,228 269,255 64,027 634,510
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18 Other funds (Continued) 18

Institute Bz

Foftb 5 8 (4)

General and Other
development operation Donations
reserve fund reserves and
—RRER Hfh  benefactions Total
HEES BB BRRIBE #%8
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT BT BT T BT T
Balance at 1 July 2007 R-ZZLtF LA —ANERE 641,020 182,368 53,144 876,532
Transfer (to)/from income and #(A)/ BlZE
expenditure statement (150,032) 27,176 2,496 (120,360)
Inter-fund transfer (Note 17) EeMER 0 17) (10,477) (576) (202) (11,255)
Balance at 30 June 2008 and REZBENFARA=THR
at 1 July 2008 —EENFLtA-HWER 480,511 208,968 55,438 744,917
Transfer (to)/from income and #(A)/ BlZE
expenditure statement (178,758) 37,721 8,433 (132,604)
Inter-fund transfer (Note 17) B MER (3 17) (525) - - (525)
Balance at 30 June 2009 R-ZBZhFRBE=THNERE 301,228 246,689 63,871 611,788
(a) “General and development reserve fund” (“the Reserves”) () [—khER#FEER] ([REE
represents the unspent UGC funds (i.e. the recurrent grants ®) ) BHEOHRBHESER (AL
other than earmarked grants for specified purpose) of the BUHER  BTREMSHRERNET
Institute. The balance of the Reserves at the end of the B - REESNEBERE GEERE
funding period (usually a triennium) that can be carried over =) ERRNARAAEE T — @8R
to the next funding period is limited to a maximum of 20% FE GBS EIERR (T8
of the approved recurrent grants for the Institute other than FBHSHRBENEERER) &Z20% B
the earmarked grants for specific purposes for that funding PR o AN SRR EE S H B H B W R R 45
period. Should the balance of the Reserves at the end of PREBBA AT ER - BEHASEER
the funding period exceed the ceiling allowed, the excess BTHES -
amount is refundable to the UGC.
(b) “Other operation reserves” are funds other than those (2) [HibaiEREE] B () 3 (2) AT
described in (a) or (c) and are to be used to finance the MASNYES - W BIAERAEEN
Group’s activities in general. —WREBRHES -
© “Donations and benefactions” represent the reserves of (A)  [BRRBE] EREESIERLETE

donations without specified purposes from the donors.

FEEIBR A -

ERHEER2008/20098 B |/ &
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (k5B #HBHS) - A 8L B AE()

19 Government subventions

19 BuRF

Subventions from UGC
Block / Recurrent grants
Earmarked grants
Home Financing Scheme
Matching grant
Replacement Town Centre
Earmarked for pension top-up
Earmarked language
immersion programmes
Matching grant for
internationalising the
student population
Research projects
Housing-related benefits
other than Home
Financing Scheme
Restructuring and
collaboration fund -
academic restructure
Restructuring and
collaboration fund —
Project 4Y
Development of the New
Undergraduate Program
Promoting outcome-based
approaches
2008-12 Development of
new 5 year undergraduate
Upgrading of Language
Teaching & Learning Facilities
3+3+4 Symposium Partnering
for Excellence in Education
New Initiatives to 3+3+4
Other earmarked grants

Government rent and
rates refund

Capital grants and Alterations,
Additions, Repairs and
Improvements Block Allocation

Grants from government
agencies

HESEA

BE /R

FEE R
JEFTE Byt
EWAPSER
EEMRIR
EEMMERSE
FEE RB IR AR IR

B4 ABERE
SHEEABBR

IR
FERAFEIZEE
faMERE S

BRRBEES
- BfffEA

SRR EES
—4YHER

BRAB LB
RAZRTE
HEEARBARARNTTE

TR N\FE_T——F
HITRFHIE L BARE
RABEHENEE L

A k= - HAIKMEHERE]

RERBY ==

[==/] ZEHIeHEE

H AR E B
R[N ZE £

ERBH R - i -
HEERE TR

BUF B R
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Group F&H Institute Bz
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

BETT BETT BT BETT
415,436 369,054 415,436 369,054
83,002 67,555 83,002 67,555
25,881 32,199 25,881 32,199
21,153 6,210 21,153 6,210
9,344 9,533 9,344 9,533
5,653 5,708 5,653 5,708
6,544 4,405 6,544 4,405

- 1,246 - 1,246

2,491 2,438 2,491 2,438
1,141 1,032 1,141 1,032

167 2,379 167 2,379
1,566 961 1,566 961
4,313 686 4,313 686
2,311 164 2,311 164
1,408 - 1,408 -

561 315 561 315

200 - 200 -

57 = 57 =

212 279 212 279

7,192 7,079 7,192 7,079
54,207 54,028 54,207 54,028
559,837 497,716 559,837 497,716
93,354 81,794 69,127 59,218
653,191 579,510 628,964 556,934




20 Tuition, programmes and other fees

20 B~ R ft B 2

Group &£E Institute
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT T BT BETT BET T
UGC - funded programmes BESEYFRE
Tuition fee 2% 152,583 141,142 152,583 141,142
Programmes and other fees AR HMKE 6,904 8,097 6,904 8,097
Non UGC - funded FHESERRR
programmes
Tuition fee 2% 87,386 78,163 26,817 19,080
Programmes and other fees AR R H U B 18,372 18,536 14,053 13,659
265,245 245,938 200,357 181,978
21 Interest and net investment income 21 FMBEBE TR
Group & &£H Institute iz
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT T BT BETT T T
Investment (loss)/gain from REERAREBEIA
financial assets at fair value BRrEmEEN
through profit or loss % & (E518)/ W (2,937) 12,127 (2,937) 12,127
Dividend gain & B Wiz 372 69 372 69
Interest income FEHA 28,191 46,918 27,831 46,196
25,626 59,114 25,266 58,392
22  Donations and benefactions 22 KB
Group #&£H Institute iz
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT T BT BETT BT
Capital projects HiZIHAE 2,610 2,373 2,610 2,373
Scholarships, prizes and bursaries "B  RENPES 3,466 2,156 3,365 2,106
Donations for academic activities HEMDEB AR 19,360 9,272 19,038 8,547
25,436 13,801 25,013 13,026

The HKSAR Government has launched the Fourth Matching Scheme
for UGC-funded institutions to match the donations secured by
them. Donations pledged and paid to the Institute between January
2008 and February 2009 are eligible for such matching grants.

EEFERNEHLEHE B DR EMBAE
BB eIE  UEHEAPRRETESNIE
e EZTENF—RAE_ZTTNF = BHM&
HANE XN ETE e ERRBE L ES
BB -

EBHBEEKR2008/2009U HRE
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22 Donations and benefactions (Continued) 22 HIEKEB 4
As at 30 June 2009, the related income and expenditure incurred for RIZTAFERNAZTH  FREKBESER
the donations eligible for matching grants are shown below: B M IBREERAM AL HEFENT
Group and Institute 7<= @Mz
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
LHMEPE LREIB
$'000 $'000
BT T BT T
Balance at 1 July RtB—BN&EE 69,281 53,439
Income ON
Matching grants B2t Bk e 21,131 -
Matched donations LEEN - 21,131
Interest and investment income FERAEE WA 1,960 1,256
23,091 22,387
Expenditure X
Academic strength and BiTEREHRER
niche area development 7,047 9,387
Teaching and research HE R
enhancement 267 362
Scholarships, prizes and KBS  RENYPES
bursaries 318 999
Internationalisation and BUFR (b B 2R A X HRTR B
student exchange activities - 63
Student development BAEH) 804 562
Others Hith 24 -
8,460 11,373
Balance at 30 June RAB=+HWNER 83,912 64,453
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22 Donations and benefactions (Continued) 22

As at 30 June 2008, the related income and expenditure incurred for

the matching grants are shown below:

Balance at 1 July

Income
Matching grants
Matched donations
Interest and investment income

Expenditure

Academic strength and
niche area development

Teaching and research
enhancement

Scholarships, prizes and
bursaries

Internationalisation and
student exchange activities

Student development

Others

Balance at 30 June

23 Auxiliary services

Student hostels

Rental income

Rental contribution from staff
Others

WK B (4)

Group and Institute A& @A

RIBZNFRA=TH  SEMPDSHEBHR
ABSHFHENT

Matching Matched
Grants Donations
LR LREIBM
$'000 $'000
BT BT
REtB—BWERF 70,268 54,146
A
LSRN 6,284 -
LR - 6,284
FEREEWA 2,524 1,478
8,808 7,762
X
BITEREHRER
3,530 5,613
HERAERA
812 197
4,320 1,321
BIpR (L BLER A X HR)E B
- 1,055
BATEE 1,004 222
HAoth 129 61
9,795 8,469
RAB=+HANER 69,281 53,439
23 MHEmRE
Group #&@ Institute Bz
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT T BB T BET T BT T
BARES 20,805 19,554 21,074 19,676
WA 1,756 2,110 6,689 7,461
B EHESHK 2,799 2,622 2,799 2,622
EAtb 399 339 400 340
25,759 24,625 30,962 30,099

ERHESR2008/2009 8 & #

R &
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24 Expenditure 24 Il
2009 - Group F%£E
Employee
benefits Operating
expenses expenses Depreciation 2009 Total
EERAIFX EiEMX e 2009 #a%8
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
(Note 25)
(Hizt25)
Learning and research BERME
Instruction and research HE LT 536,956 90,271 2,268 629,495
Library B 24,492 21,206 841 46,539
Central computing facilities AR E R bt 32,479 31,423 4,561 68,463
Other academic services E At E290 R 7S 40,410 9,836 168 50,414
634,337 152,736 7,838 794,911
Institutional support BEXE (Note 24a)
(KfzE24a)
Management and general —RITHREE 63,068 28,041 123 91,232
Premises and related expenses W& RABRRR 26,971 92,170 67,029 186,170
Student and general education B4 R —RHE R
services 24,480 32,639 185 57,304
114,519 152,850 67,337 334,706
Total expenditure 2009 —EEAFIHBE 748,856 305,586 75,175 1,129,617

2008 - Group #F%£H

Employee
benefits Operating
expenses expenses Depreciation 2008 Total
1B BEAIF EiEM e 2008 #az8
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BETT BETT BT BEFT
(Note 25)
(Kta25)
Learning and research BERME
Instruction and research HERMFE 465,645 147,645 2,010 615,300
Library BES 22,305 16,420 760 39,485
Central computing facilities R B RHE 32,269 18,054 3,482 53,805
Other academic services H 1M AR 7S 38,756 6,972 88 45,816
558,975 189,091 6,340 754,406
Institutional support HELTE (Note 24a)
(Kizt24a)
Management and general —MRATBR B 53,653 21,520 82 75,255
Premises and related expenses R REEAXS 27,859 80,727 61,944 170,530
Student and general education B4 R—RHBERY
services 19,560 28,468 118 48,146
101,072 130,715 62,144 293,931
Total expenditure 2008 —EEN\FXHEE 660,047 319,806 68,484 1,048,337
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24 Expenditure (Continued)

2009 - Institute 2Bx

Learning and research
Instruction and research
Library
Central computing facilities
Other academic services

Institutional support

Management and general

Premises and related expenses

Student and general education
services

Total expenditure 2009

2008 - Institute Bz

Learning and research
Instruction and research
Library
Central computing facilities
Other academic services

Institutional support

Management and general

Premises and related expenses

Student and general education
services

Total expenditure 2008

HERHE
BRI
EEE
R B
AL RTS

BEXE

—RRITER KRB
R&REREFRX
BER—RHE R

—ERAFXHAR

HH R
e it
EE
R BRI
A B AR

HEXE

— TR RER
& BRI
B R—RHE RS

TERENEXHAE

24 Xl @

Employee
benefits Operating

expenses expenses Depreciation 2009 Total

R RIERIPIX HIERI J# 2009 43
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

BB BB BB BETT

(Note 25)

(Kta25)

487,992 69,903 1,566 559,461
24,492 21,206 841 46,539
32,479 31,423 4,561 68,463
40,410 9,836 168 50,414

585,373 132,368 7,136 724,877

(Note 24a)

(Ktat24a)
63,068 27,658 123 90,849
26,971 90,465 67,029 184,465
24,480 32,488 185 57,153
114,519 150,611 67,337 332,467
699,892 282,979 74,473 1,057,344

Employee
benefits Operating

expenses expenses Depreciation 2008 Total

EERAF EIER S e 2008 #4858
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

BT T BT T BHTT BETT

(Note 25)

(Hizt25)

427,883 119,032 897 547,812
22,305 16,420 760 39,485
32,269 18,054 3,482 53,805
38,756 6,972 88 45,816

521,213 160,478 5,227 686,918

(Note 24a)

(HfzE24a)
53,653 20,978 82 74,713
27,859 78,964 61,944 168,767
19,560 28,318 118 47,996
101,072 128,260 62,144 291,476
622,285 288,738 67,371 978,394

ERHEER2008/20098 B |/ &
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24 Expenditure (Continued) 24 X @
(a) Analysis of operating expenses - Institutional support () ®BEFAISW-#HBLIRE

Group #£H Institute %z

52

2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BET T BETT BETT BT
Management and general —RITERER
Office expenses WAET 24,336 18,777 24,157 18,633
Professional and legal fees HEERER 617 482 617 461
General insurance — MR ARBR 909 927 873 787
Auditor’s remuneration 2 Gillln 690 759 522 522
Minor equipment and NV R R E
system implementation 1,489 575 1,489 575
28,041 21,520 27,658 20,978
Premises and related expenses REREREA
Utilities NZEYii 18,929 17,998 18,515 17,472
Repair and maintenance and #ie RBERNEITIR
minor works 31,434 24,512 31,059 24,251
Premises rental BFHEE 9,902 9,600 9,171 8,751
Government rent and rates =R R Hb AR 7,088 7,260 7,088 7,260
Cleaning services B RIS 6,426 6,106 6,322 6,014
Security services IR 2 IR TS 8,411 5,978 8,355 5,978
Office expenses WARMR 6,490 2,765 6,490 2,765
Telecommunications BANEA 1,045 1,008 1,020 973
Minor equipment and NEVREBER R EE
system implementation 1,731 4,668 1,731 4,668
Property insurance bESN S 356 407 356 407
Notional rental for staff quarters BIEENERES 358 425 358 425
92,170 80,727 90,465 78,964
Student and general B R —RAB R
education services
Student hostels expenses BAFRELH 13,003 7,684 13,003 7,684
Health care centre BEEP L 2,592 2,508 2,592 2,508
Scholarship, bursaries and 2L BHELM
prizes to students SR 7,752 9,391 7,601 9,241
Extra-curricular activities RINEE) 4,383 6,292 4,383 6,292
Office expenses /N 4,536 2,282 4,536 2,282
Others EAh 373 311 373 311
32,639 28,468 32,488 28,318
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25 Employee benefits expenses

Wages and salaries

Unutilised annual leave

Gratuities

Contributions to MPF scheme

Contributions to superannuation
scheme

Compensation for loss of office

Provision for long service payment

Housing benefits

Other staff related benefits

25 REmAHX
Group A £&H Institute iz
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BETT BETT BT BETT
T& K 611,319 532,997 565,796 498,857
REEFR 9,139 10,605 8,813 9,765
Hm & 24,978 19,113 23,780 17,757
BEREE a0k 10,080 8,242 8,813 7,253
AAE ST EIE G

43,019 37,409 43,019 37,409
KRB 18 - 644 - 644
EHRE & &G 112 - 112 -
EERA 33,391 34,934 33,391 34,934
HtvE BAERER 16,818 16,103 16,168 15,666
748,856 660,047 699,892 622,285

Higher paid staff

Total annual equivalent emoluments irrespective of the

funding sources for the higher paid staff are analysed as

follows:

Basic salaries, housing allowances,
other allowances and benefits
in kind

B - BERR
b8 R B A aa

The above emoluments fell within the following bands:

Number of staff EE&H

Emoluments bands:

$1,800,001 - $1,950,000
$1,950,001 - $2,100,000
$2,100,001 - $2,250,000
$2,250,001 - $2,400,000
$2,400,001 - $2,550,000
$2,550,001 - $2,700,000
$2,700,001 - $2,850,000
$3,000,001 - $3,150,000
$3,450,001 - $3,600,000

& 48R :

751,800,001 - 5% 1,950,000
751,950,001 - #%2,100,0007T
7512,100,0017T - 7#%2,250,0007T
75#2,250,0017T - #A#2,400,0007T
752,400,001 - 5%2,550,0007T
752,550,001 - #%2,700,0007T
7512,700,0017T - 7#%2,850,0007T
75#3,000,0017T - ##3,150,0007T
753,450,001 - 5%3,600,0007T

SHEENFHFEEARE (TEHEE:

HIREA]) DATIAT -

Group and Institute Z&&EBAHEE

2009 2008

$'000 $'000

BETT BT T
25,681

S RARI AT

2009

- - NWw

- = =

EBHBEHEKR2008/20

13,682

2008

-, =N

= = g

09 8 # 4

R &
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25 Employee benefits expenses (Continued) 25

(b)

Key management personnel compensation

The key management of the Group and the Institute refers to
those senior management having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
Group and the Institute and their compensation are analysed

as follows:

R ELRRIDA 3 (48
FRERARHM
AEENHKENEREEABRER RS
MEALRE - BT HI A K BN
EBHRMBEEAR - MR T
LU

(£)

Group and Institute A& @bz

T& - HBAnERs

Salaries, wages and allowances

Employer’s contribution to B ERIK S R
retirement schemes
Provision for gratuities and A & AR Sz R RIS

unutilised annual leave

26

26 Finance cost

ERNERHN S
ERMEENERFE

Effective interest on borrowings
Effective interest on financial assets

27 Taxation 27

The Institute and its subsidiaries are exempted from payment of
Hong Kong Profits Tax by virtue of Section 88 of the Inland Revenue
Ordinance.
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2009 2008
$'000 $'000
BETT BT T
13,476 8,281
63 39
2,724 2,131
16,263 10,451
o5 AR
Group and Institute Z& @AM
2009 2008
$'000 $'000
BETT BETT
206 244
31 -
237 244

BiIH
RiE (BB F88lk  HEREMBARIN
R BBFISH -



28 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

(@) Cash (used in)/generated from operations

Note
b5
Deficit for the year AEEER
Adjustments for: AEIER :
- Depreciation - TE 4
- (Gain)/loss on disposal of - HERTEE )/ BE
fixed assets
- Net investment loss/(gain) from - #ZA# BB AR
financial assets at fair value TREENFRE
through profit or loss B8 / (Wax) 21
- Dividend gain - R B 21
- Grants Transferred from - BEREERESRH
deferred capital funds kA 16
- Interest income - FEHA 21
- Finance cost - BATSR AR 26
- Exchange differences - X ER
Changes in working capital: EEESHNEE
- Accounts receivable, deposits - RWERAR - e RIERFIE
and prepayments
- Provision of employee benefits - (& E1@H#E
- Accounts payable and accruals - BRI R EATFRIE
- Increase in deferred income - REWR AR N 15
Cash used in operations EEARE
(b) In the cash flow statement, the disposal of fixed assets is

analysed as follows:

Ao £ B 4 U ) e Bt ik

28 (TR  EENIRE

2009
$'000
BETR
(124,774)
75,175

(127)

2,937
(372)

(74,590)
(28,191)
237

(7, 567)
12,102
(36,759)

2,356

(179,573)

2008
$'000
BT

(117,535)
68,484

42

(12,127)
(69)

(68,017)

(46,918)
244
243

(7,1217)

(9,671)
121,790

58,767

(11,888)

FHRERER  MEBEEENTAOT :

Net book amount
Gain/(loss) on the disposal

Proceeds from the disposal

Note
HizF
BRTENFE 4
H eI / (B518)
& TSR

2009
$'000
BT T
127

132

2008
$'000
BB

154
(42)

112

EBHBEEKR2008/2009U HRE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (k2B #HBHI) » A 8L B AE(T)

29 Capital commitments

As at 30 June 2009, the Group and Institute had capital commitments
on leasehold improvements, furniture and fixtures as follows:

29 EARKE

REZZBZAFANA=ZTR - FEENHEHEE
MEEE  RARBEEEENEARENT

Group and Institute Z<&@Apx

Contracted but not provided for BE B R
Authorised but not contracted for BHEEREL

30 Commitments under operating leases

(a) As at 30 June 2009, the Group and the Institute leased a
property under an operating lease arrangement with a term
of three years.

At the balance sheet dates, the Group and Institute had
future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of a property as

follows:

2009 2008
$'000 $'000
BT BT
39,151 28,735
3,013 2,987
42,164 31,722

30 REMERRE

F) RZZZEAFRA=1+H AEERH
IR —TREEHERHET —BEY
¥ RHI=F-

NEER  AEEBNKREE B
WA BEEEHE s R RREREN
SREBEEAR ¢

Group and Institute <&@ ML

Within one year —F R
After one year but no later than E_EZFERFR
five years

Operating lease charges for the year AEELEHRESTH

(b) As at 30 June 2009, the Group and Institute had future
aggregate minimum lease receipts under operating leases in
respect of rental properties as follows:

2009 2008
$'000 $'000
BT T BT
8,360 8,040

= 1,340

8,360 9,380

8,040 8,040

() RIZZAFRA=+H  AEENH
RAEBHEMEZ A IREEEEEZ
RRFAEEEW AT T

Group and Institute A& Bk

Within one year —FA
After one year but no later than E_ZERFRA
five years

The leases typically run for a period based on the terms on the
employment contracts. Lease are usually reviewed every year to
reflect the market rentals.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2008/2009

2009 2008
$'000 $'000
BETR BT
118 327

- 22

118 349

HEMNEB—RIREERBAONERTE - A%
EETFEeFEHEE  UAkMRmSES -



Related party transactions

Other than those disclosed in Notes 9(c)and 25(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Institute undertook the following significant

transactions with the HKIEd SCPE during the year:

(a) Commitment under operating leases

Included in Note 30(a), certain operating lease rentals for
office premises of the Institute will be absorbed by the HKIEd

SCPE for its use as follows:

31

R 5k 5 38 5
BT AW ISREMNIIIRE) K25(2) FrEsn -
HERFAGEFTEHBEBRETIIEAR
% °
() REEHENRE
AEMFES0(R) - Mol ER S
BEHSBRBEXEERMEMEAM
EPENT

Within one year —ER
After one year but no later than EEZERFR
five years
(b) Other transactions

2009 2008
$'000 $'000
BT BT
2,553 2,355

- 393

2,553 2,748

() Eix5

Note
st
Interest income FEWA (a)
Interest expense FMEFAXZ (@)
Office expenses under TN [BERMAE] AH
“Learning and research” PAEFT
- Service fee to printing unit - BTERIECHREE  (b)
Service and management fee income RS & EIEE LA
- Staff cost recharged for human - RANBERIZEKE
resources support BEMKA (©
- Outsourced teaching fee income - SNAEZRZEE A K
and administrative fee income TTHERA (d)
Rental income RPN (e)

2009 2008
$'000 $'000
BT BT
5 58

> (15)
(235) (500)
2,249 3,942
7,441 7,144

5,224 5,596

Note:

(a) Interest was charged at a rate equivalent to the monthly savings account interest rate quoted by The Bank of East Asia, Limited on the amount
due from the HKIEd SCPE and was charged on the overdue balance.

(b) Service fee to printing unit was charged in accordance with the terms mutually agreed by the Institute and HKIEd SCPE.

©) Staff cost was recharged at actual cost of seconded staff.

(d) Outsourced teaching fee income was charged by the Institute in accordance with the terms mutually agreed by both parties. Outsourced
administrative fee income was charged at actual cost incurred.

(e) Rental income was charged in accordance with the terms mutually agreed by both parties.

Pt -

(%) FISIRIER I EH B Bl ey B R ERITHIR A AT R G A FEFAFIEAE - AR ARG UFE

(2) 46 T IR B iz 4 AR 75 B TR IR B B F B 2 B 2 e 5 gk A IR UK AR o

() 1E B IR (5 0B B B BB AU [E] -

(T) INHIEI B BINNA TIIRIZ L T 1538 B R BT IRER  ShHIETTIR B IR AR EE A B B R ARG 5 o

(%) TER WA TIIRIEE T 1735 B G YLER

EBHBEEKR2008/2009U HHRE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Ex BB BN » BB & 5ELUE B AE)

32 Comparative figures 32 ¥
Certain comparative figures in the financial statements have been R BRERABOLBRETEMELEFIRE - XA
reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation. HEARELZNFBA

33 Accounting estimates and judgements 33 @atEt KA
The Group’s fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over PN S IE%&IE’QE%%%%E& ARG
the estimated useful lives of the assets after taking into account their ARBRNESEETIESE - AEETFE
estimated residual value. The Group reviews the estimated useful Eﬁﬁéﬁ’ﬁﬁi%ﬂ'ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ&k@ » FE AR TE PAMEAR]
lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine WMERTDANFTEZ LS - 0] AERREET)
the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded during any RIBFERELHRUEEMNBTLR I (WEh)
reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based on ZERENRBEORAREFINEAMNETE - IR
management’s historical experience with similar assets and, where BEMTERALRENES  FEESRHBRK
applicable, taking into account anticipated equipment upgrade and HARIMPTE S -
replacement. The depreciation charge for future periods is adjusted
if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

34 Possible impact of amendments, new standards 34 CHAGIHMNRERE _-ZRAEAAS

and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which have not been adopted in these financial statements. Those
that may be applicable to the Group are as follows:

+ Bk AR B AR RO 5 ]
W 1 2k B 5 2

HEATBRRTIER  FEGHMASDEMN

ZIRBEAMBIMRKANERT - FEAMZ
7 o AT RRIBME AT seE AN AR E

~ Y S R

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

AT B Bisz R A A IR AR

HKAS 1 (Revised)
CBEBEFTERD) F15REEEE])

Amendments to HKFRS 7
(ERPBREER) 7T5RERT
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009
“ZETNF (BB BREER) B
HKAS 27

(CEBGER) F275%

HKFRS 3 (Revised)
CEBMBRELER) FE35EEET)

HKAS 23 (Revised)
CEAGETER) FE235 (K 1EET)

The Group has not early adopted these amendments, new

Presentation of Financial Statements

[ 7= e 51 ¥ )

Financial Instruments: Disclosure
[¢RTH: #8E|

1 January 2009

1 January 2009

1 July 2009 or 1 January 2010

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

e BB B mE 1 July 2009
Business Combinations

EAH 1 July 2009
Borrowing Costs

BEERA 1 January 2009

AEBWEAERE—

ERAFERNA=ZTHLEFE
BB SRR TP IR AT R AN S LB AT - A

E‘J&%ﬁ%

standards and new interpretations in the financial statements for
the year ended 30 June 2009. The Group has already commenced
an assessment of the impact of these amendments, new standards
and new interpretations but is not yet in a position to state whether
these amendments, new standards and new interpretations would
have a significant impact on its results of operations and financial
positions.
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Report of the Trustee &t A#H4

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME &EEH B 2 AE &2

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Bt 58 &BA9)

For the year ended 30 June 2009 HE-—ETNF A NA=Z+HILFE

The Trustee presents its annual report and the financial
statements of The Hong Kong Institute of Education
Superannuation Scheme (“the Scheme”) for the year ended

30 June 2009.

Introduction

The Scheme was established on 1 September 1995 to provide benefits on
retirement, death, ill-health and termination of employment to its Scheme
Members. It was registered under the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO") on 12 December 1995.

There were 415 (2008: 350) Scheme Members at the end of June 2009.
Total contributions paid and payable into the Scheme during the year ended
30 June 2009 amounted to HK$40 million (2008: HK$32 million). Of this,
Scheme Members and the Hong Kong Institute of Education contributed at the
rate of 5% and 15% of the Scheme Members’ basic salaries respectively.

The assets of the Scheme are invested in Sub-Funds of the RCM Choice Fund
(formerly known as “Allianz Global Investors Choice Fund”) including the RCM
Balanced Fund (Ordinary Class - A), RCM Capital Stable Fund (Ordinary Class -
A), RCM Growth Fund (Ordinary Class - A), RCM Stable Growth Fund (Ordinary
Class - A), RCM HK$ Liquidity Fund (Ordinary Class) and Absolute Return Fund
(Ordinary Class - A). The assets of the Scheme were also invested in Sub-Funds of
the Fidelity Advantage Portfolio Fund (Ordinary Units) including Balanced Fund,
Capital Stable Fund, Growth Fund, Stable Growth Fund and US Dollar Money
Fund. Fidelity Advantage Portfolio Fund is a unit trust established as an umbrella
fund managed by FIL Investment Management Limited. The net asset value of
the Scheme as at 30 June 2009 was HK$367 million (2008: HK$388 million).

C TB 2R E R BE)

Report of the Trustee EFEAE

HFEHFT LA B eald (U TFEH [
#| ) WG NBEREE ZFFLFENA=
1 H 14 JE 19 3B AE 1 7 R B 5 e 7

515

AFBR—ANEFAA—BRIL - BB ERMR
K B mERBERRE - AFFER-NWAESF+ =
A+ BREEE CBERAFEED) UATEHE CR
REHENRD]) VBORE - FEARGEM T4 -

RZZTNFARA=+A - FEIKEHE415% (:1515
N\ :350%) c BE_TZNFAAA=ZTHLEFE
REFEIE AT R ER B R4 EE BB 4,0008 7T (::: Z
J\EE : BE3,20087T) © 5HEIRC B B HREE A EEARE
©H5% - MEEHFFER R RN EERFHEH15% °

REAEMEERENRCMIBERES (FITE [ERBEER
e NHBEES  BEHEHEES (FB—A) BEA
AES (FE—A) - ERES (TE—A)  BEER
E® (TdE—A)  BIRHES (T8 URBFE®R
e (EBE—A) - FFENEETRENTEEBRE
HeEEE (FB) NTEE:  REAHES - EAIE
EES WRES  FRERESNETERES -E
EEUREMSECS —HAFAEMGERES B FIL
Investment Management Limited 12 - R =TT NFN
A=+8  FEWEEFER/BE367ET (ZTZN
& BE3.8sEL) ©

ERHESER2008/2009 8 & &
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME &HB#E R ATE$ &
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (k5B BN » BiE & BB B A E()

Trustee

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited, the trustee, is responsible for
the administration and investment policy of the Scheme.

Membership

Membership of the Scheme is a condition of employment for all employees
hired on superannuable terms on or after 1 September 1995 who have not
elected to join the MPF Scheme subsequent to December 2000.

Membership of the Scheme is optional for employees who transferred to the
Institute from the Civil Service subject to the Pensions (Special Provisions) (The
Hong Kong Institute of Education) Ordinance (“Pension (Special) Ordinance”)
on or after 1 September 1995. Only those who opted for the Frozen Pension
Scheme would be eligible to become members of the Scheme.

An analysis of the number of Scheme Members is as follows:

Rt A

ERNESRBETRSE (EM) BRATAERIN
EERRERER -

i H

AR—NNAEFNR —BRAERRABSETEATAR
ERE_TTTHE A+ - ARSTRESHENMERE
BAMAREE -

ERE-NANAFNAA B ARHLBEEERH M E

GRIK CRRIGER) (BBHBE BR) 4B RIZNHES -
AUDNAARGT EI LB ERE - R AEEBRERKEE
& HAIRAAREEIKE -

AT Rat Bl E ABEI AT -

Active members at beginning of the year FERIARFAK S 350
New member joining AR E 78
Members leaving prior to retirement TR RATRER T EIMIR B (11)
Retired members EIRRHIE S )
Active members at end of the year FEKRERTNKE 415

Officers and advisors

Employer: The Hong Kong Institute of Education

Trustee: HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited

Scheme administrator: HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited

Auditors: KPMG
Certified Public Accountants
Enquiries: Any enquiry regarding the Scheme should be

addressed to:
HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited

No. 1 Queen’s Road, Central
Hong Kong

For and on behalf of the Trustee,
HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited

Hong Kong, 19 November 2009
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Independent Auditor’s Report 8 A% S %

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME &HB# & Ef ATaS &
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (k5B #EAS) » BiE & EELUE B A E()

Independent Auditor's Report B ZEEfREE

To the Trustee of The Hong Kong Institute of Education Superannuation Scheme ("the Scheme")

BEEBHEBRAESHE ( [AEE] ) FREA

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme set out on pages
65 to 83, which comprise the statement of net assets available for benefits
as at 30 June 2009, and the statement of changes in net assets available
for benefits and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Trustee’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Trustee of the Scheme is responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), the terms of the Trust Deed
and the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit and report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 “The audit of retirement schemes”
issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the Scheme’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Scheme’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Trustee, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

FEBE CATEE (R ) BBELSINE655837%
BB ER - KHBRREER-EBAEAAST
AT BRI A A F AR BB SR A L R TIERE
EFEEHENDLRRE - REBEHIE REMH
SEREIE -

i W\ B 2 i AR M Y SUAT:

FHENEEARBERBEFEGHOQSRME (BB
MIEMEER) - FEREZONETLEEE (BERAEE
) mERABEMI TR FRERE - BETE
ERE - B REEEREN AT A TR HRE
MERAR BRI - AR SR N R RF Sk EE AR T
BEMBERERRL  BENERESOSHEE - 1R
BN TEL A BEEFHEE o

A B Y B AT

BANEEERERMNEZEZSVBERRELER
WERBEEFRARS « RILASN  RANBEETTH
TEEAMAE « P IRAREZNAET - BEFMEMA
TREIAIEERET -

B REBGMAGRON (FERECER) k2
IREZEFHEBISHAA860.1 [RIRFTEITA | #ITEX -
BLAERERE MG TBERE - YR RTER - N
SEBENFHBREREE MFAEAERERERL -

BROSRPITRFAER A BV B R SEREE
K EREE - PREENIZFRURNZEETH AL - B1F
AR R R M SR IR T EAMHERRIME
[ - R R SRR - ZEEE RN ERRIE
BEMAFHFRY BT AMOANES - UREHEE R
BIZIEF - EXIFERE AR BN MES R REEERE
R BRNTEEFBERAMRANSITBENEEIER
FIEH G EHhETO AR - URFTEIBiRKOEED|

ERHERR2008/20098 B H/ &
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Independent Auditor's Report B ZEERE S

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Trustee of The Hong

Kong Institute of Education (Continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
disposition of the assets and liabilities of the Scheme as at 30 June 2009,
and of its financial transactions and cash flows for the year then ended in

accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the terms of the Trust Deed.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

19 November 2009

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2008/2009
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (k55 %855

C TB 2R BE)

Compliance Report BIZEESHRBEE

By the Independent Auditor to the Trustee of The Hong Kong Institute of Education Superannuation Scheme (the “Scheme”)

BEEBHEBRAEESHE ( [AEE] ) FFEA

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme for the year ended
30 June 2009 in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing and with
reference to Practice Note 860.1 “The audit of retirement schemes” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), and

have issued an unqualified auditor’s report thereon today.

Pursuant to section 20 of the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (“ORSQ"), we are required to report whether the Scheme
complied with certain requirements of the ORSO.

Respective responsibilities of the Trustee and auditor

The ORSO requires the Trustee to ensure that:

(a) proper accounts and records are kept as regards all assets, liabilities
and financial transactions of the Scheme;

(b) contributions are made in accordance with the terms of the Scheme;

(@) the assets of the Scheme are not subject to any assignment, charge,
pledge or other encumbrance except for those specified in section
20(3)(b)(iii) of the ORSO; and

(d) the requirements of section 27(2) of the ORSO are complied with.

It is our responsibility to report solely to you on the Scheme’s compliance with
the above requirements based on the results of the procedures performed
by us and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Basis of conclusion

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance engagements other than audits
or reviews of historical financial information” and with reference to Practice
Note 860.1 “The audit of retirement schemes” issued by the HKICPA. We
have performed such procedures as we considered necessary for the purpose
of reporting on the Scheme’s compliance with the above requirements.

AREED OATEME (%)) BERBELSHMLE
MR (BBRECER) R2REZHMEBDAHS60.1
RIAGHEIER] - ERTAFEBE—ZTAFAA
ZTHLEFENMBHRE YR _ZTAF+—ATH
REETERESENZBEBEE -

RIEES (BERKRTEUEN) ( [ CGRIRFTEUED) | )
F2015 - HMFHERATEIREHFE CGRIRETENESE) 8
BETHREELRS -

fr WE A B B 4% H A
CGRIRFTBIED) REETEALERER -

(F) CRENFINMAEEE  AERFBERNZ
ZHREMACEE

(2) CREBEARESEFRERAHR
() BT CRIKETEIED) F20(3) (b) (i) (FATHETE
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME &HB# A R ATa$ &
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (k5B HEAI) » BiE & BB H A E()

Compliance Report B ZHEEHRKES

HF R FE A B G # ( [AEt#] ) (4)

Compliance Report by the Independent Auditor to the Trustee
of The Hong Kong Institute of Education Superannuation
Scheme (the “Scheme”) (Continued)

Conclusion

Based on the foregoing, in our opinion:

(a) proper accounts and records have been kept during the year ended
30 June 2009 as regards all assets, liabilities and financial transactions
of the Scheme during the year ended 30 June 2009;

(b) contributions have been made in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme during the year ended 30 June 2009 and there was no
shortfall between the assets and the aggregate vested liability of the
Scheme as at 30 June 2009;

(@} at 30 June 2009, the assets of the Scheme were not subject to any
assignment, charge, pledge or other encumbrance except for those
specified in section 20(3)(b)(iii) of the ORSO; and

(d) at 31 December 2008, 31 March 2009 and 30 June 2009, the
requirements of section 27(2) of the ORSO have been complied with.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

19 November 2009
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Statement of Net Assets Available for Benefits mI fbig#]¥ A F R

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME &HB#E Ef ATES &
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (k5B HEAS) » BiE & EELUE B A E()

Statement of Net Assets Available for Benefits
AEEFNEEFER
e

Note 2009 2008
et —ETNE —ET)N\F
HK$ HK$
As at 30 June 2009 R-ZBZAFEASA=TH
Financial assets at fair value BRAREETABRE 5 369,435,222 391,088,276
through profit or loss g c@ocecoooes | cocoooooooc
Current assets REEE
Accounts and other receivables FEURBR SR B E At FE UK 3R 60,951 78
Cash at banks RITIER 2,282,648 2,169,543
2,343,599 2,169,621
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts and benefits payable e BR R B A A 4(a)(ii) 5,014,483 4,816,612
Net current liabilities REEEFE (2,670,884) (2,646,991)
Net assets available for benefits sTEIR B L AR 366,764,338 388,441,285
attributable to Scheme Members EEFE _— —_—
For and on behalf of the Trustee, REEFTA
HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited ESMEETERYE (GEMN) BRAR
19 November 2009 —TENF+—ATNA

The notes on pages 68 to 83 form part of these financial statements.
F68F 83 H MM TR AR A BT IRKR A —EB17 o
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Available for Benefits mJ fitif & s FE# B2

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME &EB# A Sl A4 st &
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (k5B HEAI) » BiE & BB H A E()

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Available for Benefits
AHENEEREZER

66

Note 2009 2008
Kzt —EThEF —ETNEF
HK$ HK$
For the year ended 30 June 2009 BE-_ZZAFRA=1THLEE
Investment return REREH
Interest on cash deposits B EHFE 851 12,262
Net realised gain on disposal of financial HERAABEFABENEHE
assets at fair value through profit or loss ERE SR T8 1,608,283 10,575,139
Net unrealised loss on financial assets at fair BARBEFABSNESHEEN
value through profit or loss REBERFRE (56,105,413) (4,018,452)
Management fee rebate income EEERENKA 365,915 413,345
(54,130,364) 6,982,294
Expenses X
Trustee and custodian fees FEREAFZEAZA (1,072,898) (1,267,712)
Administration fee 1THREA (77,250) (70,750)
Miscellaneous expenses HIEF X (63) (260)
Unrealised exchange gain / (loss) KRESIE H WS/ (BE) 84,214 (5,233)
(1,065,997) (1,343,955)
Net (loss) / income for the year NEEF (BFB)/ WA (55,196,361) 5,638,339
Contributions received and receivables B R MR TR 40,017,020 32,425,797
Benefits paid and payable B R R (6,497,606) (14,256,326)
Net (decrease) / increase in net assets AHBNEEFRE (HL)/
available for benefits EInFEEE (21,676,947) 23,807,810
Net assets available as at 1 July RtBA—BMAHEEFE 388,441,285 364,633,475
Net assets available as at 30 June RAA=+HENAHEERE 366,764,338 388,441,285

The notes on pages 68 to 83 form part of these financial statements.
B 68E68H M T AR A BTSRRI — 17 ©
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Cash Flow Statement B4&ig#

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME &HB#E Ef ATES &
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (k5B HEAS) » BiE & EELUE B A E()

Cash Flow Statement
HERER
-

2009 2008
—BThEF ZTENF
HK$ HK$
For the year ended 30 June 2009 BE-ZENFAAZTHLEE
Operating activities BEXY
Net (loss)/income for the year RNEFF (BE) MA (55,196,361) 5,638,339
Adjustments for: HEIER
Net realised gain on disposal of HERARBETA
financial assets at fair value BRNeRmEEN
through profit or loss B3 W F5E (1,608,283) (10,575,139)

Net unrealised loss on financial assets

BARBEFABRSENEREED

at fair value through profit or loss RNERERFE 56,105,413 4,018,452
Interest income FEWA (851) (12,262)
(700,082) (930,610)
Cash used in operations EEMARS
(Increase)/ decrease in accounts and other JE LT AR 51 % HL A FE UK
receivables (3gm) /Ed (60,873) 197,749
Increase in accounts and benefits payable JESTBR SR SR AB A3 AN 197,871 2,584,122
Contributions received B UK 40,017,020 32,425,797
Benefits paid BEF (6,497,606) (14,256,326)
Net cash generated from operating EEEKELEN
activities RERE 32,956,330 20,020,732
Investing activities REXH
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BARARBESAER
through profit or loss NEMEE (79,972,383) (62,722,620)
Proceeds from sale of financial assets HERARBEFABZNEREE
at fair value through profit or loss BTSSR 47,128,307 43,491,357
Interest received BUFE 851 12,262
Net cash used in investing activities REEBFTANRESEHE (32,843,225) (19,219,001)
Net increase in cash and cash RERESEEYHIEINFE 113,105 801,731
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July REtE—BWRERFELEEY 2,169,543 1,367,812
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June RAAB=+HNRERESEEY 2,282,648 2,169,543

Cash and cash equivalents represents cash at banks.
ReRRLEBWERRETFR -

The notes on pages 68 to 83 form part of these financial statements.
F68F 83 M T B A LR A TSR — 517 ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements B##RER

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME &HB# A R ATa$ &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (55 A #¢805)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

1  Description of the Scheme

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Constitution of the Scheme

The operation of The Hong Kong Institute of Education
Superannuation Scheme (“the Scheme”) is governed by the
Trust Deed dated 19 October 1995. The Scheme was registered
under section 18 of the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO") on 12 December 1995.

With the implementation of the Mandatory Provident Fund
("MPF") Schemes Ordinance on 1 December 2000 in Hong
Kong. The Hong Kong Institute of Education (“the Institute”)
also participates in a master trust MPF scheme operated by
an independent service provider (“the MPF Scheme”). As the
Scheme is an MPF-exempted recognised ORSO scheme, all
the employees who joined the Institute before 1 December
2000 on superannuable terms were given the option to elect
between the Scheme and the MPF Scheme.

Principal employer

The principal employer of the Scheme is The Hong Kong
Institute of Education.

Parties to the Scheme

In additions to the members, HSBC Institutional Trust Services
(Asia) Limited is the trustee, custodian and administrator of
the Scheme.

Scheme termination

The Scheme may be terminated by the Institute by giving 1
month’s prior notice in writing to the Trustee of the Scheme,
who should then notify members that the Scheme would be
terminated as soon as practicable.

Membership

An analysis of the number of members of the Scheme is as
follows:

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2008/2009
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1 Description of the Scheme (continued)

At the beginning of the year
Add: New members
Less: Withdrawals

Retirements
Transfers

At the end of the year

(f)

1)

o FRE

B RERAER K 8
RIRAKR
R EIKER

SR

Funding policy

The Scheme is a defined contribution scheme. Members of
the Scheme (“Scheme Members”) and the Institute contribute
5% and 15% of the Scheme Members’ basic monthly salary
respectively to the Scheme. Benefits are paid to the Scheme
Members on their retirement or on leaving employment
subject to certain conditions as stipulated in the Trust Deed.

2 Statement of compliance and basis of
preparation of financial statements

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
a collective term that includes all applicable individual
HKFRS, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the ORSO.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new Interpretations and
anamendment to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Scheme. These developments have
no impact on the Scheme’s financial statements for the years
presented.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is historical cost except that investments
are stated at fair value as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. The net assets of the Scheme, as
disclosed on the statement of net assets available for
benefits, are shown before the deduction of any obligations
to pay retirement benefits in the future. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
the Scheme’s financial statements is set out in note 3.
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3

Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

(9]

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Scheme classified its investments in unit trusts as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Scheme commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value and transaction costs are expensed in the statement of
changes in net assets available for benefits. Financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried
at fair value. Changes in the fair value are included in the
statement of changes in net assets available for benefits in
the period in which they arise. Investments are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Scheme has

transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Investments in unit trusts are accounted for at fair value

based on quoted bid prices.

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A
provision for impairment of receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Scheme will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate, unless the discounting effect is insignificant.
The carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the
use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the statement of changes in net assets available
for benefits. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to the statement
of changes in net assets available for benefits.

Accounts and benefits payable

Accounts and benefits payable are initially recognised at
fair value and stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. They are classified as currency liabilities unless
the Scheme has an unconditional right to defer settlement
or liability at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2008/2009
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3

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

(e)

()

(9)

(h)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, current deposits with banks and other short-
term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity of acquisition.

Recognition of investment income

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are dealt
with through the statement of changes in net assets available
for benefits in the period in which they arise.

Interest income on deposit is recognised on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Management fee rebate income is recognised as income
when it is probable that they will be received, which is
generally upon their receipt.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
into the Hong Kong dollars using the exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in the statement of changes
in net assets available for benefits.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, are
recognised in the statement of changes in net assets available
for benefits as part of the fair value gain or loss.

Contributions

Contributions are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Benefits paid and payable

Benefits paid and payable represent all benefit claims determined
by the Trustee to be valid in respect of the Scheme during the
year in respect of Scheme Members who have left the Scheme
and are accounted for on an accruals basis. No provision is
made in the financial statements for benefits that will become
payable to existing members of the Scheme in the future.
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S B A i

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

1)

Obligations to pay retirement benefits in the
future

Details of the Scheme’s obligations to pay retirement benefits
in the future are set out in note 10. No provision is made in
the financial statements for this liability except to the extent
indicated in note 3(c). The terms “aggregate vested liability”
and "aggregate past service liability”, as used in note 10, have
the same meaning as defined in section 2(1) of the ORSO. They
may be broadly defined as follows:

Vested liabilities relate primarily to those benefits that would
be payable if an employee had voluntary resigned and thereby
ceased to be employed on the date of valuation.

Past service liabilities represent the aggregate of contributions
paid and payable by the employer and the Scheme Members,
together with any declared investment return on those
contributions on the date of valuation.

For the full definition of these terms, reference should be made
to the ORSO.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Scheme if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, to control the Scheme or exercise
significant influence over the Scheme in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over
the Scheme;

(ii) the Scheme and the party are subject to common control;

(iii) the party is a member of key management personnel
of the Scheme or a close family member of such an
individual or is an entity under the control, joint control
or significant influence of such individual; or

(iv) the party is a close family member of a party referred
to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individual.

Close family members of an individual are those family members
who may be expected to influence or be influenced by, that
individual in their dealings with the entity.
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4 Financial instruments 4 &k T H

(a) Financial risk factors () MBREBEE

The Scheme’s objective is to achieve capital growth through RETEIR B IZRFE BN ETLLHRCM Asia
investing in a selection of funds managed by RCM Asia Pacific Limited MEEES (FHE) AR
Pacific Limited and FIL Investment Management (Hong nFE (A [EEREEE (B8 AR
Kong) Limited (previously known as “Fidelity Investments NAE ) MEEREEES  UEER
Management (H.K.) Ltd"). R o

The Scheme is exposed to market price risk, credit risk, AFEREFEcHMTAMARITIS
liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk arising B% - EE RBED - FEMINER
from the financial instruments it holds. The risk management B o AFTEIFIRANE R FE R MR
policies employed by the Scheme to manage these risks are PREEBEmANT

discussed below:

(i) Market price risk (i) MIBERER
The Scheme is subject to market price risk in relation AErEEEEEAETEESMX NS
to its investment in units trusts for prices in the future BREARMTE HECEFESAR
are uncertain. The units in the underlying fund are BREVEREEERTN - HEEDH
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit BRUEAHEMNEEFERTPHES R
or loss in the statement of net assets available for REBEARBEAABRNEHEE -
benefits. The Scheme’s market price risk is managed RTINS ERRRERBAT IR
through (i) deliberate investment funds selection and (ii) BE: (WEREESNWEENE &
diversification of the investment portfolio. (i HREHEEH DR
As at year end, the overall market price exposure is as EFR - BEMSERRRNAT
follows:
% of % of
Fair value  net assets Fair value net assets
NAEE HEEFE AREE HEEFRE
HKS$ & ERai HK$ 75 ERald
Financial assets at fair value BAREBEFAEBRN 13,280,036 4% 15,097,776 4%
through profit or loss TREE

EBHBESRKR2008/2009H K| & 73
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4 Financial instruments (continued) 4 s TH (#)
(@) Financial risk factors (continued) () B¥EREZ (&)
(i) Market price risk (continued) (i) MBERRE (8)
The table below summarises the impact of increases/ TEREME_ZZNER_ZZTN\EX
decreases from the unit trusts’ underlying benchmark on R=+H BuETESHEB2ZER
the Scheme’s net assets attributable to Scheme Members B £/ TSR BIRK B IS ARE B E
at 30 June 2009 and 30 June 2008. The analysis is based EFENTE HEHTERILE
on the assumption that the index component within the BRAMBEKG EF/ TS (ZF
benchmark increases/ decreases by 5% (2008: 5%), with TNF 1 5%) MATEEMESEET
all other variables held constant and that the fair value g URAFEREN AR BETIZR
of the Scheme’s investment moved according to the BEWE L BREREMEE -

historical correlation with the index.

Benchmark increase/ decrease by 5%

BEEB LA/ TERE%

Impact on net assets available for benefits
attributable to Scheme Members
HEt BN EREAHENEEFENKE

BEEERG —ZEERE ZZTTN\F
Benchmark components 2009 2008
HK$ HK$
il bk
(1) RCM Choice Fund (1) RCMBEES
(formerly Allianz (AIBERERESD)
Global Investors
Choice Fund)
Balanced Fund FTSE HK HEES BERED 3,077,654 3,298,624
HSBC HKD (Total return) ELRITHEIT (BRI
FTSE AW North America Index ERILEIEE
FTSE AW Europe Index EREUMNEE
FTSE Japan Index B BAER
FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan BRI AR
ex Hong Kong Index HE (B - BERIN
Citigroup World Government TEEEETREFES
Bond Index (USD hedged) feE (i)
Citigroup World Government TEEEEHRBFAES
Bond Index (USD) E8 (X7T)
Capital Stable Fund ~ FTSE HK BEEAES ERES 150,242 135,918
HSBC HKD (Total return) SELRITHET (BER)
FTSE AW North America Index BRI EIEE
FTSE AW Europe Index EREUMNEE
FTSE Japan Index B BAER
FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan BRI AR
ex Hong Kong Index E8 (B - HHEKRIN
Citigroup World Government TEESEETREFES
Bond Index (USD hedged) feE (i)
Citigroup World Government TEEEEHRBMAES
Bond Index (USD) HE (7T
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4 Financial instruments (continued) 4 #M TR (4)

(@) Financial risk factors (continued) () B¥kEREZE (E)
() Market price risk (continued) (i) mBEERR (&)

Benchmark increase/ decrease by 5%
BERE LT BK5%

Impact on net assets available for benefits
attributable to Scheme Members
HEtENERERHENEEFENKE

SEEERG ZEENF ZZTEN\F
Benchmark components 2009 2008
HK$ HK$
il ot
(1) RCM Choice Fund (1) RCMBEES
(formerly Allianz (FIBERBERES)
Global Investors
Choice Fund)
(continued)
Growth Fund FTSE HK HREES BRES 2,286,864 2,340,664
HSBC HKD (Total return) ELRITET (ABR)
FTSE AW North America Index ERFILEEE
FTSE AW Europe Index BEREUMEE
FTSE Japan Index B HAEE
FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan ERDARIEH
ex Hong Kong Index (B - BBERIN)
Citigroup World Government EEEEEREMAES
Bond Index (USD hedged) a8 (ETE)
Citigroup World Government EESEETREFES
Bond Index (USD) HE (7T
Stable Growth FTSE HK BEERES BRES 409,896 342,073
Fund HSBC HKD (Total return) ELRITHET (ABR)
FTSE AW North America Index ERFILEEE
FTSE AW Europe Index BEREUMEE
FTSE Japan Index B HAEE
FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan BERDARIEH
ex Hong Kong Index (B - BBERIN)
Citigroup World Government EEEEEREAES
Bond Index (USD hedged) a8 (=TEhH)
Citigroup World Government EESEETREFES
Bond Index (USD) 58 (=7)
Absolute Return FTSE all world BiZEIHRES ERE2KER 4,018 16,764

Fund
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME &EB# A Sl A4 st &
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (k5B HEAI) » BiE & BB H A E()

4 Financial instruments (continued) 4 #H LA (4)
(@) Financial risk factors (continued) () B¥kERBEZE (&)
(i) Market price risk (continued) (i) miBERRR (&)

Benchmark increase/ decrease by 5%
BEEBR LA/ TER%

Impact on net assets available for benefits
attributable to Scheme Members
HEt BN EREAHENEERENRE

SEERERD ZEERF ZTTN\F
Benchmark components 2009 2008
HK$ HK$
il ok
(2) Fidelity Advantage (2) SEBHRE
Portfolio Fund HEES
Balanced Fund FTSE AW North America Index HEREe BRI IE R 4,130,242 5,267,668
FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan BRDARIEH
ex Hong Kong Index (B - BHBBRIN
FTSE AW Europe Index EREUMNEE
Custom Hong Kong Index EREBEE
(consisting of 90% FTSE AW (BIE90% B HF
Hong Kong Index & 10% BB IEEAN
HSBC Holdings) 10%E L% h%)
FTSE AW Japan Index B B ABEE
Citigroup World Government TEFEE& Bt R
Bond Index EHFIEH
Capital Stable FTSE AW North America Index BABERESR ERILEEE 472,798 442,046
Fund FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan BRDARIEH
ex Hong Kong Index (B - BHBBRIN
FTSE AW Europe Index EREUMNEE
Custom Hong Kong Index EREBEE
(consisting of 90% FTSE AW (BIE90% B HF
Hong Kong Index & 10% BB HEEAM
HSBC Holdings) 10%EL )
FTSE AW Japan Index B B ABEE
Citigroup World Government TEFEE& Bt R
Bond Index EHFIEH
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4 Financial instruments (continued) 4 #H TR (4)

(@) Financial risk factors (continued) () B¥kEREZE (E&)
(i) Market price risk (continued) (i) miBERRR (&)

Benchmark increase/ decrease by 5%
BEEB L/ T#E%

Impact on net assets available for benefits
attributable to Scheme Members
HEt BN EELAHENEEFENTE

SEEERHD —EThEF ZTTNF
Benchmark components 2009 2008
HK$ HK$
(2) Fidelity Advantage (2) EEBEBRE
Portfolio Fund HEES (&)
(continued)
Growth Fund FTSE AW North America Index HEES BRI R 2,282,559 2,761,035
FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan BERDARIEH
ex Hong Kong Index (B - AN
FTSE AW Europe Index EREUMNEE
Custom Hong Kong Index BEHRB B
(consisting of 90% FTSE AW (BN
Hong Kong Index & 10% BB EEN
HSBC Holdings) 10%ELHEAR)
FTSE AW Japan Index B BAEE
Citigroup World Government TEE SR Bt R
Bond Index BHFHEH
Stable Growth FTSE AW North America Index FEREES BRI R 465,763 492,984
Fund FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan ERFDEARIEH
ex Hong Kong Index (B - FHBRRIN)
FTSE AW Europe Index =V
Custom Hong Kong Index EREAEH
(consisting of 90% FTSE AW (BFEI%E
Hong Kong Index & 10% BEIEEM
HSBC Holdings) 10%ELHZAL)
FTSE AW Japan B B A
Citigroup World Government TETEER Bt R
Bond Index BFIEH
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME &HB#E R ATES &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (k5B BN » BiE & BB # A E()
4 Financial instruments (continued) 4 LA (4)
(@) Financial risk factors (continued) (R) M¥REEE (8)
(i) Credit risk (ih FER
The Scheme is potentially subject to concentration of e EIA A e R B R A S R AT
credit risks which consist principally of balances with P B EEEREELRENERN

Their credit
risk is limited because the counterparties are reputable
As such, the

investment managers and bank balances.

and creditworthy financial institutions.
credit risk is considered minimal.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet.

(iii

=

Liquidity risk

The Scheme is exposed to unexpected withdrawal of cash
benefits. It manages the risk by investing the majority of
its assets in investments that are traded in active markets
and can be readily liquidated.

The table below analyses the Scheme’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the
impact of discounting is not significant.

RITER - ARE O FHMEE LTS
RIFHBBHE - FtEMNEERR
AR -l - FERRFEEATAK

HEERENRSRAERENREERE
TABESREENRESE

(i) REE LSRR

=

REHEIEH F R AR 2 =
REMER - AFHEIE B E K
T’ﬁﬁﬁhéﬁf‘ﬁ 2 %% B T 35 F1 A]

ERZRMNKRERE £ EtmER
BREARR -

TRAEFTENGREEREERRE
FKAREEHEIE AT IR A
BRI AR DT - U TRBENHES
BRRBPBERE - HRIROE
LEY - AR 1218 A N R HR A A
EREREAE -

2009 2008
ZEBZAF —EEN\F
HK$ HK$
Less than 1 year DR—F
Accounts payable FEATBRR 1,791,239 1,604,650
Entitlement payables to bankrupt JERT B EERK B/E IR i ET &I
members/resigned members X BB S FRIE 2,719,621 2,910,259
Minimum benefits payable to FEfRTE SR
Mandatory Provident Fund RIEA & 404,000 196,000
Other payables E AT R 99,623 105,703
5,014,483 4,816,612
Net assets available for benefits sTEIK BRI HE R
attributable to Scheme Members BEFE 366,764,338 388,441,285

371,778,821
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4 Financial instruments (continued)

(a)

(b)

(9]

Financial risk factors (continued)

(iv) Interest rate risk

The majority of the Scheme’s financial assets and liabilities
are non-interest bearing; as a result, the Scheme is not
subject to significant risk due to fluctuations in the
prevailing levels of market interest rates. Accordingly, in
the opinion of the Trustee, the changes in market interest
rates do not have a significant impact on the Scheme’s
income and operating cash flows and no sensitivity
analysis is performed.

(v) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises where future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the Scheme’s
functional currency. The Scheme holds assets primarily
in United States dollars. As Hong Kong dollars is pegged
to United States dollars under the Linked Exchange Rate
System, the foreign exchange exposure between the
United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars is therefore
limited. In the opinion of the Trustee, the Scheme will
not be exposed to significant exchange rate risk exposure
and no sensitivity analysis is performed accordingly.

Scheme assets risk management

The Scheme's objectives when managing assets are to
safeguard the quality of the Scheme’s assets in terms of liquidity,
sufficiency and adequacy so as to meet the benefits of the
Scheme Members.

In order to achieve its objectives, the Scheme’s investments are
properly managed by professional investment managers under
the close review by the Institute.

Fair value estimation

All financial instruments were carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 30 June 2009
and 2008. Investments in unit trusts are fair valued based on
quoted bid prices.

4 2 TH (4)

(F)

MHEBRER (&)
(iv) %

ANEHEIR
TR ﬁﬁ(@ﬁ%‘ ﬂ?ﬂéﬁvmiﬁ*'ﬁ—lﬁk
FEUEEN B ERER - Eit - {5
FEARR - MSARNBEH AT
HWAMEBR @REWEEKNT
2 TORAEETRRIES -

(v) SNERE

SNEERBR IR B FELAANET BB T e S
REMNHARREERZS - MEBRH
BESAME AHEBENEETE
RUAETTRENN o BN EE X
T ATTEZETEMY - BUBTHET

ESNE BB FRIE - EREARR  A&T

B TAREANINERE - FILEHE

EITRRNED AT -
FREEENARER

AFBEEREENTENBRERIERY
M R M= HRERE
BENEER  UIFHEIKEHREF) -

BTRIEE
WG EEE
TEEEE -

REtEEBEREERED
R BN EEE T

RREEMRE
FESRIANKEANR_ZEZNFR
:gg/\ﬁ/\ﬁ_ﬂ' EOUN Eﬁ 2zl
PRSI - EREEESHRE
KIEERBEBRAABETIEE -
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME &EB# A Sl A4 st &
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (k5B HEAI) » BiE & BB H A E()

5  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 5 &4 fufE il 5+ A 38 25 ) & b % 28

2009 2008
—EThE —TTNF
HKS HKS
s s
RCM Choice Fund (formerly Allianz Global RCMBEES
Investors Choice Fund): (FIBEREEES)
RCM Balanced Fund (Ordinary Class A) HEES (LBA) 91,562,750 107,280,002
RCM Capital Stable Fund (Ordinary Class A) BEEARES (LBA) 9,937,853 10,521,165
RCM Growth Fund (Ordinary Class A) HMERES (LMA) 50,916,610 56,617,909
RCM Stable Growth Fund (Ordinary Class A) BEERES (LBA) 16,560,470 16,919,096
RCM HK$ Liquidity Fund (Ordinary Class A) BrnBES (L\BA) 32,887,731 17,045,076
RCM Absolute Return Fund (Ordinary Class A) EZEsmES (FBA) 1,276,718 2,398,910
Fidelity Advantage Portfolio Fund: EEFUREAEES
Balanced Fund HEES 81,786,439 94,912,951
Capital Stable Fund BEABEES 9,180,492 8,419,920
Growth Fund HEES 46,112,004 51,130,283
Stable Growth Fund FIEERES 9,132,542 8,882,598
US Dollar Money Fund ETEBES 20,081,613 16,960,366
Maximum exposure to credit risk EER B AR AE 369,435,222 391,088,276
6  Expenses 6 il
During the year, certain expenses, including audit fee, of the Scheme FARABNELER (BEZHUE) ATE
were borne by The Hong Kong Institute of Education, which will BElEEE  EANSERGEET TELE

continue to pay for these expenses until the number of Scheme’s M EEH B E M ABEE5008 A1 o
Members reaches 500. N

The auditor’s remuneration of $25,000 (2008: $50,000) for the year has AEEMZEMM$25,0000 (ZZFEZEN
been absorbed by the employer, The Hong Kong Institute of Education. ££:50,0007T) BHRIELEBHEBERE -
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7

Normal contributions from employer

Normal contributions from Scheme Members

10

Contributions received and receivable

BEHIE & HK
FTEIRK B M EFH

Tax status of the Scheme

The Scheme is registered under the ORSO Ordinance, and is
therefore a recognised scheme for Hong Kong Profits Tax purposes.
The policy of the Inland Revenue Department (“IRD"), as set out
in IRD Departmental Interpretation and Practice Notes No. 23, is
that “recognised retirement schemes and their trustees are not
considered to be subject to profits tax on their investment income”.
Accordingly, no provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
in the Scheme’s financial statements.

Forfeitures

The Superannuation and MPF Schemes Management Sub-committee
has resolved to adopt the Actuary’s recommendation that the
forfeited benefits from the Scheme Members leaving the Scheme
prior to reaching full vesting be allocated to the scheme reserve.
The scheme reserve may be used to pay the scheme expense and
be reallocated among the Scheme Members of the Scheme at the
direction of the Trustee.

Obligation of the Scheme to pay retirement
benefits to members in the future

The aggregate past service liability for the Scheme as at 30 June
2009 was $366,764,338 (2008: $388,441,285).

The aggregate vested liability for the Scheme as at 30 June 2009
was $339,159,854 (2008: $359,030,116).

7

10

W e i Wk 3k

2009 2008

—EThEF —ETN\F

HKS HK$

B B

30,012,765 24,319,348

10,004,255 8,106,449

40,017,020 32,425,797

AT % e B A DL

At BIiRE CGRIREHBIGD) - REBFG

BRRARRAKEHE - REFEVEBHB K
PIFER RITIESI B3RS BB EEK - [R

BREFE REERANRE WA BASN
FE] o M - AR B EEMBHRERDRE
ABRNSHAEEE -

JHE 2508 g v D kK A A7
NESHRBE S EEE MEEE S RATEERN
BEEMEZ  LEFEKNEEREBRZERE
WAz AR DEE - MBAEBGKENREH
RiEfr - BERAGBIRED  SERETARX
MBI EAHZEFEARETR - 58I
SEEHOE °

AEt 3 H % i R B S AHE k& AT

MRZEBETAFENA=Z1THE A2 BER
4B ER366,764,3387C (ZZEE)\F -
388,441,2857T) °

RZETAENA=Z+TH  AFEWNEELEARE
/339,159,854 (—ZTZ)\4F : 359,030,116
)o

4l
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11

Bank interest income

Cash and deposits held at year end

Related party transactions

Other than as disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements, during

the year, the following significant related party transactions are

carried out with related parties:

(a)

(b)

Transactions with the Investment Managers

The financial assets in the Scheme are managed by FIL
Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited and RCM Asia
Pacific Limited (the “Investment Managers”). The Investment
Managers provide investment management services to the

Scheme and receive in return of management fees.

The Scheme also received management fee rebate from
the Investment Managers of $365,915 for the year (2008:
$413,345).

Transactions with the Trustee and its fellow
subsidiary

The Scheme engages HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia)
Limited (the “Trustee”) to provide trustee and custodian
and administrative services for a fee of $1,072,898 (2008:
$1,267,898) and $77,250 (2008: $70,750) respectively.

The Scheme also has the following transaction and balance with a

fellow subsidiary of the Trustee:

RITABUA

FRITFRE RFH
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IoH Wk U5 22 5

BT SRR MO TR ER SN

FRHERR T E

TTEERBE T BT

HEREREBEETHRS

At BEERBEES (B8) B
[RAR K& RCM Asia Pacific Limited ( [
WEKIE] ) TR - WEKERARFS]
R EEBRY - WREERRSEE -

FARGETHEECBERRERER
Bl 365,9157T (ZFE)\F : B
413,3457T) °

BEXARERRZMNERRANRS

RN EERELHBETLERSE (2MN)
BRAF ([EEAL) BEETA
AEAREBARYE  EHEASAA
1,072,8987C (—ZZT/\F : 1,267,8987C)
R77,2507T (ZZ%/\E : 70,7507T) °

AEBTFEERAN —KBRMNE R RHET T
Z Gk

2009 2008
—EThEF —ETNF
HK$ HK$

ot ok

851 12,262

2,282,648 2,169,543



12

13

Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures relating to “net realised gain on
disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” and
"net unrealised loss on financial assets at faiir value through profit
or loss” have been reclassified in the statement of changes in net
assets available for benefits and the cash flow statement to conform
with the current year’s presentation.

Possible impact of amendments, new standards
and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 30 June 2009

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations that are first effective for the current period of
the Scheme. These developments have no impact on the Scheme’s
financial statements for the years presented.

The Trustee of the Scheme has not early adopted HKAS 1 (Revised
2007) “Presentation of Financial Statements” and Amendments to
HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Improving Disclosures
about Financial Instruments” that have been issued but are effective
for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009. The
Trustee has not completed the process of assessing the impact that will
result from adopting these revised or amended standards, and hence
it is not in a position to state whether these would have a significant
impact on the Scheme’s result of operations and financial position.

12

13

ey

R THERAABEAABRSNEREEND
BRWEFE] R [RARBEAABRONSHE
AENARERERFE] OO RBFEET
HENEEFEEDRLREREXFHEHNE
B URaAFENTIHRT N -

CHAHEHNRERE “FFILEAH=
+ H kA R AR R T~ B S A
I HE 4 20 1 5 2

TEEMAGERMZEERFTEENHAMER
EEVERT - $TERIFIREE o S ER B LI Y
A BIFDSRFENIBRRIERERZE -

REFMEEALBRAMESR (BB ER])D
F15 (ZFTLFER]) [MHRERNIR] K&
(BEREMBMELER) F75REET [2BIA
WE— R TANKE] (MERHAEE—
ZTNF-A-BRZEMABENEAHMER
o (SREA DR TR B B ER A3 L B B IE R T Y
ERIPTBR BN - 2IBATRL - FFEA
R BRI Lo R RV AR ST B R0 IS 2 A AN B
BB EEANTE -

ERHEER2008/20098 B |/ &

83






Design & Production: Twice Graphics (www.twicegraphics.com)

Published by authority of the Council
The Hong Kong Institute of Education
All rights reserved 2009

Enquiries may be directed to
Communications and

Institutional Advancement Office
The Hong Kong Institute of Education

10 Lo Ping Road, Tai Po,
New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2948 6050

Fax: (852) 2948 6046
E-mail: ciao@ied.edu.hk
URL: www.ied.edu.hk

RESFHELR
FEH AR 2009
IREEFTE TSEIED

ERBAR
EREYERR GHARARE

BBMANHBERE %
BEah 1 (852) 2948 6050
{85 :(852) 2948 6046
FHf : clao@ied.edu.hk
#84k : www.ied.edu.hk

&% This Report is printed on environmentally friendly
and elemental chlorine free paper

AREEIRLAIRIR KR E SRR AL ENRL

RUERE
caringorganisation

Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
EATERBHSRR






	HKIEd Financial Statements
	Treasurer's Report
	Independent Auditor's Report
	Balance Sheet
	Income and Expenditure Statement
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Funds
	Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
	Notes to the Financial Statements
	   -  General information
	   -  Summary of significant accounting policies
	   -  Financial risk and fund risk management
	   -  Fixed assets
	   - Investments
	   -  Financial instruments by category
	   -  Held-to-maturity investments
	   -  Time deposits
	   -  Accounts receivable, deposits and prepayments
	   -  Financial assets as fair value through profit or loss
	   -  Cash and cash equivalents
	   -  Accounts payable and accruals
	   -  Provision for employee benefits
	   -  Borrowings
	   -  Deferred income
	   -  Deferred capital funds
	   -  Restricted funds
	   -  Other funds
	   -  Government subventions
	   -  Tuition, programmes and other fees
	   -  Interest and net investment income
	   -  Donations and benefactions
	   -  Auxiliary services
	   -  Expenditure
	   -  Employee benefits expenses
	   -  Finance cost
	   -  Taxation
	   -  Notes to consolidated cash flow statement
	   -  Capital commitments
	   -  Commitments under operating leases
	   -  Related party transactions
	   -  Comparative figures
	   -  Accounting estimates and judgements
	   -  Possible impact  pf amendments, new standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2009
	Report of the Trustee
	Independent Auditor's Report
	Compliance Report
	Statement of Net Assets Available for Benefits
	Statement of Changes in Net Assets Available for Benefits
	Cash Flow Statement
	Notes to the Financial Statements
	   -  Description of the Scheme
	   -  Statement of compliance and basis of preparation of financial statements
	   -  Significant accounting policies
	   -  Financial instruments
	   -  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
	   -  Expenses
	   -  Contribution received and receivable
	   -  Tax status of the Scheme
	   -  Forfeitures
	   -  Obligation of the Scheme to pay retirement benefits to members in the future
	   -  Related party transactions
	   -  Comparative figures
	   -  Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretation issued but not yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2009



